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The Honorable Members of Jasper County Council
¢/o Ms. Kimberly Burgess

Director, Administrative Services

Jasper County Council

P. 0. Box 1149

Ridgeland, SC 29536

Dear Ms. Burgess:

Please let me express my appreciation to the Jasper County Council for the allocation of $10,000 to USCB
this past year. We greatly value Jasper County’s strategic partnership and continued support.

Given USCB’s local economic impact, we continue to believe it is critical that we begin moving towards
the goal of restoring USCB’s annual funding allocation to $300,000. Therefore, we are again requesting
that this funding goal be reached over a four-year period — on a schedule of:

2024: $75,000
2025: $150,000
2026: $225,000
2027: $300,000

Thus, with this goal in mind, | respectfully and formally make our 2024 funding request for $75,000.

Currently, the State of South Carolina provides only 16% of USCB'’s total public funding. USCB is a local
resource —driven to serve our local community and excelling through local support. The majority of USCB
students are residents of Jasper and Beaufort Counties. The support we receive from our local counties
Is critical in enabling us to provide excellent opportunities for postsecondary education and assists us with
being able to hoid our tuition fiat for the fourth straight year to ensure affordabllity and access for local
students. We anticipate no tuition increase for FY 2024.

Other returns that Jasper County receives from annual investment in USCB include:

¢ Support of the local economic impact from roughly 2,000 students and over 300 employees
studying and working on our Bluffton Campus located on the 8eaufort/lasper County line

¢ Providing Jasper County School District high school students with dual enroliment opportunities
that provide them with a head start to post-secondary education and increasing the number who
attend colleges and universities across the state

» Offering specialized programming such as the Math Boot Camp program provided to Jasper
County students during the summer annually.

One University Boulevard » Bluffton, South Carolina 29909
(843) 208-8000 www.uscb.edu

An Equs Opponumnity stitution
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At USCB, we take our commitment to Jasper County serlously and take pride in our partnership. We thank
you and ali members of the Jasper County Council sincerely for what you make possible through your
continuing support.

if | may answer any questions or provide additional information, | would be delighted to speak with you,
Sincerely,

N, o

Al M. Panu, Ph.D.
Chancellor

One Univarsity Boulevard + Bluffton, South Caralina 29909
{843) 208-8000 + www.usch.edu

An Equal Opportundy Inskitution



UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH CAROLINA - Beaufort

REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2022



UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH CAROLINA - Beaufort

CONTENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Statement of Net Position
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Staternent of Cash Flows
Governmental Discretely Presentad Component Unit — Statement of Net Position
Governmental Discretely Presented Component Unit — Statement of Revenuss,
Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Notes to the Financial Statements

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Schedule of the Campus’ Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
Schedule of the Campus’ Contributions Related to the Pension Liability
Schedule of the Campus’ Proportionate Sharae of the Net OPEB Liabllity
Schedule of the Campus’ Contributions Related to the OPEB Liability

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND

OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS AND RESPONSES

oD s

10

33
35

37
39



»

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Trustees
University of South Carolina
Columbia, South Carolina

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and the
discretely presented component unit of the University of South Carolina — Beaufort (the Campus), a
campus of the University of South Carolina (the University), as of and for the year ended June 30,
2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Campus' basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our oplnion, based on our report and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respactive financial position of the business-type
activities and the discretely presented component unit of the Campus, as of June 30, 2022, and the
respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We did not audit the financial statements of the Beaufort~Jasper Higher Education Commission. Those
statements were audited by an other auditor whose report has been fumished to us, and our opinion,
insofar as it relates to the amounts included for Beaufort-Jasper Higher Education Commission is
based solely on the report of the other auditor.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Campus and to meet our
other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions. The financial statements of the Beaufort-Jasper Higher Education Commission were
not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

Emphasis of Matter
Correction of an Error

The Campus recorded an adjustment beginning net position to recognize certain revenues earned in
prior periods. The effect of this restatement is identified in Note 15. Qur auditors’ opinions are not
modified with respect to this restatement.



The Board of Trustees
University of South Carolina- Beaufort

As discussed In Note1, the financial statements of the Campus are intended to present the financial
position, the changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows of only that portion of the
business-type activities of the University that Is attributable to the transactions of the Campus. They do
not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the University as of June 30, 2022, the
changes in its financial position, or, where applicable, its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinions
are not modified with respect 1o this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of intemal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditors’ Responsibiiities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government
Auditing Standards will always delect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulling from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Govemment Auditing Standards, we:
« Enxercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financlal statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Campus’ intemal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters thal we identified during the audit.



The Board of Trustees
University of South Carolina- Beaufort

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Schedule of
the Campus’ Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability, the Schedule of the Campus’
Contributions Related to the Pension Liabiiity, the Schedule of the Campus’ Proportionate Share of the
Net OPEB Liability, and the Schedule of the Campus’ Contributions Related to the OPEB Liability, be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information Is the responsibility of
management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Govemmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with GAAS, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or
provide any assurance.

Management has omitted management's discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financlal statements, is required
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. Our opinions on the basic financial statements are not affected by this missing information.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November
18, 2022, on our consideration of the Campus' internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Campus' intemal controi over financial reporting or on compliance, That report
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering Campus’ internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

WM@% L7
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Charlotte, North Carolina
November 18, 2022



UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH CAROLINA - Beaufort
Statemunt of Net Position
As of June 30, 2022

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cagh equivelents $ 18,585,104
Restricted - cash and cash equivalents 10,701,814
Accounts receivable, net 7.071,999
Prepald items 82,245
Total curment assets 36,425 159
Noncurrant sssats:
Restricted - cash and cash equivalenis 79,000
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 51,988,524
Total noncumrent essets e D2,087,524
Total aasets 60,492,683
DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows refated to net OPEB Rability 9,361,167
Deferred outflows related o net pension [labliity 3,526,202
Total deferred outfiows of resources 12,867 459
LiagiLmes
Current Babikties:
Acoounts payable 108,048
Rutainage payabla 2,060
Accrued Intsrest payable 16,214
Accrued payroll and related Babllities 328,340
Accrusd compensatad absences - current portion 837422
Lesse obligations - currant portion 35,189
Bonds and notes payable - current portion 187,028
Uneamad revenues 728,742
Depasits 60,350
Funds held for others 100,722
Total currant Eabilities 2,401,115
Noncurrent Babilites:
Accrued compensated absences 63,032
Lease cbligations 58,4268
Bonds and notes payable 1,655,887
Net OPEB Bability 35,303,763
Net penslon [lability

22,604,037

Tota} noncurrent fabiiities 58,585,145

Total Habilitles 61,888,260
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflows related to nat OPEB llability 2,908,321
Defarrad Inflows related to nat pansion Rebiity 3,903,914
Total defarrad [nflows of rasourcas 6,812,236
NET POSITION
Nat investment in capital assets 50,051,994
Restrictad for:
Nonexpandsble 79,000
Expendable
Scholarships, research, insiruction, and other 356,062
Loans 314
Capital projects 16.524,854
Debt service 65,348
Unrestricted (34,485 825)
Total net position

$ 32581847

See Notes to the Financial Statements



UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH CAROLINA - Beaufort
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For the year ended June 30, 2022

See Notes to the Financial Statements

OPERATING REVENUES
Student tuition and fees ($265,529 pledged for bonds) $ 22,233,898
Less: scholarship allowance (11,131,981)
Federal grants and contracts 1,815,527
State grants and contracis 4,840,453
Local grants and contracts 617,356
Nongovernmental grants and coniracts 139,694
Sales and services of educational and other activities 1,062,984
Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises 10,060
Other fees 81,349
Other operating revenues 680
Total operating revenues 18,670,020
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and wages 17,090,490
Fringe bensfits 8,350,465
Services and supplies 8,629,460
Utllities 1,040,617
Scholarships and fellowships 4,883,778
Depreciation expense 2,084,222
Total aperating expenses 42,079,032
Operating loss (22,408,012)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
State appropriations 8,617,187
Local appropriations 2,258,351
Federal grants 10,755,670
Gifts 1,106,050
Investment income (loss) {112,785)
Endowment income (loss) 2,407
Interast on capital asset related debt (45,058)
Net nonoperating revenues 22,581,822
Income before other revenues 172,810
State capital appropriations 8,848,306
Transfers (to)/from other campuses, net 296,397
Change in net position 9,317,603
NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR 17,014,044
Restatement 6,250,000
NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS RESTATED 23,264,044
NET POSITION, END OF YEAR $ 3=z_1501 647



University of South Carolina - Beaufort
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended June 30, 2022

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Student tuition and fees $ 11,027,789
Grants and contracts 9,849,513
Sates and services of educational and other activities 961,546
Sales and services of auxillary enterprises 10,080
Inflows from federal direct student loans 9,885,851
Qutflows from federal direct student loans {8,895,851)
Paymaents to employees for services (17,188,081)
Paymants to smployees for benefits (6,833,732)
Paymants to suppliers (9,628,328)
Payments to studenis for scholarships and fellowships (4,883,778)
Other receipls 82,028
Inflows from funds due to and held for others 404,528
Outfows from funds due to and held for others (691,118)
Net cash used by operating activities (18,787,568)
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Siate and local appropriations 10,875,538
Federal grants 11,079,479
Gifts 1,088,170
Transfers to other campuses, net 298,397
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 23,339,584
CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
State capital appropriations 8,846,398
Purchase and construction of capital assels {226,581)
Principal pald on capital asset related debt {183,164)
Interest paid on capital asset related debt {80,390)
Net cash provided by capital and related financing activities 8,358,261
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment Income {107,155)
Endowment income 2,407
Net cash used by invesling activities {104,748)
Net increase (decrsase) in cash and cash equivalenis 14,805,529
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 14,544 386
Cash and cash squivalents, end of year $ 20,349,913
Reconclliation of cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents $ 18,569,101
Restricted - cash and cash squivalents, current 10,701,814
Restricted - cash and cash equivalents, noncurrent 798,000

$ 29,349.915

Ses Notes to the Financlal Statements {Continued)



University of South Carolina - Beaufort
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended June 30, 2022

Reconcliliation of net oparating loss to net cash

used by operating activities

Operating loss $ (22409,012)

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash
used by operating activities:
Depraclation expense 2,084,222
Accrued benefits ralated to net pension liabllity 1,516,734

Change in assels and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net 2,160,761
Prepaid items 62,880
Accounts payable (21,142)
Accrued payroll (38,032)
Accrued compensated absences {57,580)
Uneamed revenues 166,380
Deposits (66,222)
Funds held for and due from others (188,587)

Nst cash used by operating activities $ 510.737&*
NONCASH TRANSACTIONS
Capltal assets acquired through leases $ 9,302

See Notes to the Financial Statements



UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH CAROLINA - Beaufort
Beaufort-Jasper Higher Education Commission
Governmental Discretely Presented Component Unit
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2022
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 8,044,345
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 3,500,000
Patient and other accounts receivable, net 212,137
Prepaid items and deposits 185,288
Total current assets 9,941,770
Noncurrent assets
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 44,549,304
Total assets 54,491,074

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred loss on debt refunding 1,342,447
LIABILITIES
Current liabllities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 179,006
Accrued compensated balances 21,000
Unearned revanue 203,869
Current portion of long term debt 1,331,945
Total current liabllities 1,735,920
Noncurrent liabilities
Noncurrent portion of long term debt 31,151,618
Total liabilities 32,887,539
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred lease inflows 36,149
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 13,648,968
Restricted for capital projects and debt service 3,500,000
Unrestricted 5,860,885
Total net position $§ 22,909,833

See Notes to the Financiat Statements



UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH CAROLINA - Beaufort
Beaufort-Jasper Higher Education Commission
Governmental Discretely Presented Component Unit

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes In Net Position

For the year ended June 30, 2022

REVENUES
Operating revenues
Housing $ 5,792,906
Dining 2,862,655
Other operating reventues 253,896
Total operating revenues 8,909,457
EXPENSES
Operating expenses
Salaries and administrative expenses 570,051
Services and supplies 4,916,487
Depreciation and amortization 2,606,398
Total operating expenses 8,092,936
Operating income (loss) 816,521
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Private gifis and donations (2,253,351)
Interest and investment Income 15,661
County appropriations 2,451,728
Interest on capital asset debt (735,515)
Gain on sale of capital assets 72,735
Net nonoperating revenues {expenses) (448,742)
Change in net position 387,779
NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR 22,616,176
Restatement {74,122)
NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS RESTATED 22,542,054
NET POSITION, END OF YEAR $ 22,909,833

See Notes to the Financlal Statements



UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH CAROLINA - Beaufort
Notes to the Financial Statements

- F SIGNIFI UNTIN ]

Nature of Operations - The University of South Carolina - Beaufort (the Campus) is a State-supported, coeducationat
institution of higher education and Is one of eight campuses of the University of South Carelina {the University). The

Campus' primary purpose s to provide undergraduate, graduate, and professional education to students and conduct
research and other activites that advance fundamental knowledge.

Reporting Entity - The financial reporting entity, as defined by Govemmental Accounting Standards Board {GASB)
Codification Section 2100, Defining the Financial Reporting Entity, consists of the primary govemment, organizations
for which the primary govemment Is financially accountable and other organizations for which the nature and
significance of their relationship with the primary govemment are such that exclusion could cause the financial
statements to be misleading or incomplete. GASB Codification Section 2600, Reporting Entity and Component Unit
Presentation and Disclosure, provides criteria for determining whather certain organizations should be reported as
component units based on the nature and significance of their relationship with a primary government and classifies
reporting requirements for those organizations. Based on these criterla, the financlal statements include the Campus
and one other related entity as a discretely presented component unit. Additional information on the discretely presented
component unit is included in Note 11.

The Campus is part of the University system. The University is a component unit of the State of South Carolina (the
State). As a discretely presentad component unit of the State, the University is finandially accountable to and fiscally
dependent on the State. its Board of Trustees is appointed by the Governor and/or elected by the General Assembly
of the State.

Financial Statements - The financial slatement presentation for the Campus meets the requirements of GASB
Codification Section 2100-2900, Financial Reporting and Co5, Colleges and Universities. The financial statement
presentation provides a comprehensive, entity-wide perspective of the Campus' net position, revenues, expenses and
changes in net pasition and cash flows.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses and affect disclosure of conltingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements.
Significant estimates used include separation of accrued compansated absences betwaen current and noncurrent and
depreciation expense. Estimates are also used for the net other post-employment benefits (OPEB) and net pension

liabilities as calculated by the South Carolina Public Employee Benefit Authority (PEBA). Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Basis of Accounting - For financial reporting purposes, the Campus is considered to be engaged only In business-
type activities. Accordingly, the Campus’ financial statements have been presented using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis, revenues are recognized when
eamed, and expenses are recorded when an obligation has been incurred. Student tuition and auxiliary entarprise fees
are presented net of scholarships and fellowships applled to student accounts, while stipends and other payments made

directly are presented as scholarship and fellowship expenses. All significant intra-agency transactions have been
eliminated.

Cash and Cash Equivalents - For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Campus considers all highly liquid
investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The Campus participates in
the State’s internal cash management pool, administered by the State Treasurer. Because the cash management
pool operates as a demand deposit account, amounts invested in the pool are classified as cash and cash
aquivalents. For credit risk information pertaining to the cash management pool, see the deposits disclosures in
Note 2.

10



UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH CAROLINA - Beaufort
Notes to the Financlal Statements

The State's internal cash management pool consists of a general deposit account and several special deposit
accounts. The State records each fund's equity inferest in the general deposit account; however, all earnings on
that account are credited to the General Fund of the State. The Campus reports deposits in the general deposit
account at cost and the special deposit accounts at fair value. Interest eamed, including interest income, by the
Campus’ special deposit accounts is posted at the end of each month based on the percentage of the Campus'
accumulated dally income receivable to the total income receivable of the pool. Unrealized gains and losses are
allocated at year end based on the percentage of ownership in the pool.

Accounts Receivable - Accounts receivable consists of tuition and fee charges to students and auxiiary enterprise
services provided to students, facuity and staff. Accounts receivable also includes amounts due from the Federal, State,
and local govemments, or private sources, in connection with reimbursement of allowable expenditures made pursuant
to the Campus’ granta and contracts. Student accounts recelvable are recorded net of estimated uncollectible amounts,
State capital appropriations recelvable are aiso included in accounts receivable.

Inventories - Inventories for internal use are valued at cost. Inventories for resale are camied at the lower of cost or
market.

Noncurrent Cash - Noncurent cash consists of permanently endowed funds. These funds are extemally restricted
and are classified as noncurrent assets in the statement of net position.

Prepald Items - Expenditures for services pald for in the current or prior fiscal years and benefiting more than one
accounting period are allocated among accounting periods. Amounts reported in this asset account consist primarily of
maintenance, license and service agreements, and travel reservations and deposits.

Capital Assets - Capital assets are recorded at cost at the date of acquisition. Donated capital assets, donated
works of art, historical lreasures and similar assets are recorded at acquisition value. The Campus follows
capltalization guldelines established by the State. All land is capitalized, regardiess of cost. Qualifying
improvements that rest in or on the land itself are recorded as depreciable land improvements. Major additions and
renovations and other improvements that add to the usable space, prepare existing buildings for new uses, or
extend the useful life of an existing building are capitalized. The Campus capitalizes movable personat property
and leased assets with a unit value in excess of $5,000 and depreciable land improvements, buildings and
improvaments, and intanglble assets costing in excess of $100,000. Routine repairs and maintenance and library
materials, except individual items costing in excess of $5,000, are charged to operating expenses in the year in
which the expense was incurred.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, generally 3
to 60 years for buildings and improvements and land improvements; 2 to 25 years for machinery, equipment, and
vehicles; and 3 to 10 years for intangibles. A full month of depreciation is taken the month the asset is placed in
service and no depreciation is taken in the month of disposition.

Leases — The Campus determines if an agreement is a lease at inception, Lessee agreements are included in the
statement of net position as capital assets (lease assets) and leases payable. Lease assels represent the Campus’
right to use an asset for the specified lease term. Lease assets and liabilities are recorded based on the present
value of expected payments over the term of the leases. In accordance with Campus policy, payments on leases
with a term of 12 months or less or leases with a present value of $5,000 (for equipment leases) and $100,000 (for
property leases) or less are expensed as incurred. These leases are not included in assets or liabilities on the
statement of net position.

1



UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH CAROLINA - Beaufort
Notes to the Financial Statements

- | CCOU Contl

Uneamed Revenues and Deposits — Uneamed revenues include amounts billed for tuition and fees and certain
auxiliary activities prior to the end of the fiscal year but related to the subsequent accounting period. Unearned
revenues also include amounts received from grant and contract sponsors that have not yet been eamed.

Deposits represent enroliment deposits. Deposits are recognized as revenue during the semester for which the
fee Is applicable and eamed when the deposit is nonrefundable to the student.

Compensated Absences - Employee vacation pay expense is accrued at year-end for financial statement purposaes.
The liability and expense incurred are recorded at year-end as accrued compensated absences in the statement of net

position, and as a component of compensation and benefit expense In the statement of revenues, expenses and
changes in net position.

Noncurrent Liabliities - Noncument liabllities include (1) principal amounts of bonds payable, notes payable,
and leases payable with contractual maturities greater than one year; (2) estimated amounts for accrued
compensated absences that will not be paid within the next fiscal year; and (3) net pension and OPEB liabilities.

Funds Held for Others - Current balances in Funds Held for Others represent custodial funds held by the Campus on
a short-term basis (three months or less) for groups and organizations that account for activities in the Campus
accounting system and whose cash is part of the cash held on deposht with the State.

Deferred Outflows of Resources - The consumption of net position that is applicable to future reporting pericds.
The Campus’ deferred outflows of resources consist of increases in net pension and OPEB liabilities that were not
included in expanses. Also, employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date of the net pension and
OPEB liabilities are reported as deferred cutflows of resources.

Deferred inflows of Resources - The acquisition of net position that is applicable to future reporiing periods. The
Campus’ deferred inflows of resources consist of decreases in the net pension and OPEB llabllities that were not
included in expenses.

Net Position — Components of the Campus’ net position are classified as follows:

Net investment in capital assets: This represents the Campus' total investment in capital assets, net of outstanding
debt obligations related to those capltal assets. To the extent debt has been incurred but not yet expended for capital
assets, such amounts are not included as a cornponent of net investment in capital assets.

Restricted - nonexpendable: The restricted nonexpendable component of net position consists of endowment and
similar type funds in which donors or other outside sources have stipulated, as a condition of the gift instrument, that

the principal is to be maintained inviolate and in perpetuity, and invested for the purpose of producing present and future
income, which may either be expended or added to principal.

Restricted - expendabie: The restricted expendable component of net position includes resources which the Campus
is legally or contractually abligated to spend in accordance with restrictions imposed by extermal third parties.

Unrestricted: The unrestricted component of net position represents resources derived from student tultion and fees,
and sales and services of educational depariments and auxiliary enterprises. These resources are used for transactions
relating to the educational and general operations of the Campus, and may be used at the discretion of the goveming
board to meet cument expenses for any purpose.

When an expense is incurred that can use both restricted and unrestricted resources the expense is first applied to
restricted resources then {o unrestricted resources.

12



UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH CAROLINA - Beaufort
Notes to the Financial Statements

- GNIFI TING POLICI tinued

Income Taxes - The University is a political subdivision of the Stata and, is therefore, generally exempt from federal
and state income taxes under applicable federal and state statutes and regulations on related income. Certain activities
of the Campus may be subject to taxation as unrelated business income.

Classification of Revenues - The Campus has classified its revenues as either operating or nonoperating revenues
according to the following criteria:

Operating revenues: Operating revenues generally result from exchange transactions to provide goods or services
related to the Campus' principal ongoing operations.

These revenues include:

(1) student tuition and fees recelved in exchange for providing educational services, housing, and other related
services to students;

(2) receipts for scholarships where the govemmental agency has identified the qualified student reciplents;

(3) fees received from organizations and Individuals in exchange for miscellaneous goods and services provided
by the Campus;

(4) contracts that are essentially the same as contracts for services that finance programs the Campus would not
otherwise undertake; and

(5) payment by grant from governmental and non-govemmental entities for the purpose of conducting research
activities.

Nonoperating revenues: Nonoperating revenues include aclivities that have the characteristics of nonexchange
transactions. These revenues include gifts and contributions, appropriations, investment income, and any grants and
contracts that are not classified as operating revenue or restricted by the grantor to be used exclusively for capital
purposes.

Scholarship Discounts and Allowances - Student tuition and fee revenues, and certain other revenues from students,
are reportad with related scholarship discounts and allowances in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes
in net position. Scholarship discounts and allowances are the difference between the stated charge for goods and

sarvices provided by the Campus and the amount that is paid by students and/or third parties making payments on the
students’ behalf.

Rebatable Arbltrage - Arbitrage involves the investment of proceeds from the sale of tax-exempt securities In a taxable
investment that yields a higher rate of return, resulting in income in excess of interest costs. Federal law requires entities
to rebate to the government such income on lax-exempt debt if the yield from these eamings exceeds the effective yield
on the related tax-exempt debt issued.

Govermnmental units that issue no more than $5 million in total of all such debt in a calendar year are exempt from the
rebate requirements. For this purpose, tax-exempt indebtedness includes bonds and certain capital leases and
installment purchases. Rebates are payable every five years or at maturity of the debt, whichever Is earfier. However,

the potential liability Is calcutated annually for financial reporting purposes. The Campus had no rebatable arbitrage
llability at June 30, 2022

Donor-Restricted Endowments - Endowments are subject to restrictions requiring that the principal be invested and
that only the income be used for specific purposes. i a donor has not provided specific fiming instructions, state law
permits the Board of Trustees to authorize for expenditure the endowment’s net appreciation. Any net appreciation that
is spent is required to be spent for the purpose for which the endowment was established. The Campus has a total
retumn policy for authorizing and spending endowment income.

At June 30, 2022, $76,384 of the amount reported as net position, restricted expendabie - scholarships, research,
instruction and other, represented cumulative net appreclation of donor-restricted endowments.
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. POLICI
New Accounting Pronouncements

GASB Statement No. 87, Leases: This Statement requires recognition of assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows of
resources for leases previously classified as operating leases, based on the payment provisions of the contract.
This Statement applies to all leases (lessee and lessor) with a term greater than one year. The Campus
implemented this Statement in fiscal year 2022,

GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost incurred Before the End of a Construction Period: This
Statement establishes accounting requirements for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period.
Interast cost will now be recognized as an expense in the period in which the cost is incurred. The Campus
implemented this Statement in fiscal year 2022,

GASB Statement No, 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements: This statement provides
guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for subscription-based information technology arrangements.
The Campus will continue to evaluate this Statement and its impact on the financial statements. The requirements
of this Statement are effactive for the Campus in fiscal year 2023.

NOTE 2 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Most deposits of the Campus are under the control of the State Treasurer who, by law, has sole authority for
invesling State funds. Certain deposits are deposited with or managed by financial institutions and brokers as
restricted by donors.

The following schedule reconciles deposits within the notas to the statement of net position amounts:

Statement of Net Position
Cash and cash equivalents (current) $ 18,569,101
Restricted cash and cash equivalents {current) for;
Debt servce 79,939
Scholarship, research, instruction, and other 363,880
Capital projects 10,257,995
10,701,814
Restricted cash and cash equivalents (noncurrent) for:
Endowments 79,000
79,000
Total 329349915
Disclosure, Deposits
Cash on hand $ 3,050
Deposits held by State Treasurer 29,346,865
Total $ 29,349,915
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Deposits Held by State Treasurer - State law requires full coliateralization of all State Treasurer bank balances.
The State Treasurer must correct any deficiencies in collateral within seven days. Information pertaining to the
reported amounts, fair values, and credit risk of the State Treasurer's deposits is disclosed in the Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) of the State of South Carolina.

With respect to the investmenis in the State's internal cash management pool, all of the State Treasurer's
investments are insured or registered or are Investments for which the securities are held by the State or its agents
in the State’s name. Information pertaining to the reported amounts, fair values, and the credit risk of the State
Treasurer's investments is disclosed in the ACFR of the State of South Carolina. For the fiscal year ended June
30, 2022, the balance of $29,346,865 identified above as "Deposits held by State Treasurer includes the
reduction of unrealized depreciation of $93,264.
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NOTE 3 - RECEIVABLES
Accounts Recelvable - Accounts receivable consisted of the following:

Student $ 500,720
Federal grants and contracts 220,399
Local grants and confracts 184,056
Non-governmental grants and contracts 2,846
State capital appropriations 6,250,000
Accrued interest 13,202
7,171,223
Less allowance for doubtful accounts (99,224)
Accounts receivable, net $ 7,071,999

State capital appropriations recelvable represent outstanding Capital Reserve funds that have been appropriated
but not yet drawn. The State has authorized thasae funds for improvements and expansion of state facilities. The
Campus is not obligated to repay these funds to the State.

Allowances for doubtful accounts ara based upon actual lossas experienced in prior years and evaluations of the

current accounts.

NOTE 4- CAPITAL ASSETS

June 30, 2021 Additions Reductions Net Tranafers June 30, 2022
Capital assats not being depreciated
Land $ 4697887 § - 8 - $ - 8 4,697,887
Works of art and historicel raasuras 62,026 - - - 62,026
Total capital assefs not baing depraciated 47659013 - . - 4,759,813
Othar capital assets
Land improvements 6,668,330 - - - 6,668,330
Buildings and improvements 63,735,873 - - - 83,735,973
Machinery, squipment and other 2,433,403 164,816 66,380 113,220 2,645,049
Vehicles 576,589 71,087 33,002 - 614,654
Total capital assets at historical cost 73,414,285 235,883 99,302 113,220 73,664,008
Less accurmuiated depreciation for
Land improvernents 2,892,250 185.962 - - 3,078,212
Bulidings and Improvements 10,327,773 1.619.975 - 20,847,748
Machinery, squipmant and other 1,757 460 201,529 86,390 113,220 2,005,828
Vehicles 350,853 768,756 33,002 - 403,807
Total accumulated depreciation 24,337,345 2,084,299 99,392 113,220 26,435,385
Othor capital assets, net 49,078,950 {1,848,338) - 47,228,611
Capiln) assals, net $ 53830880 3 (1,845,335 % - 3 - 3 51888824
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NOTE 5 - PENSION PLANS

The South Carolina Public Employee Benefit Authority (PEBA), which was created July 1, 2012, administers the
various retirement systems and retirement programs managed by s Retirement Division. PEBA has an 11-member
Board of Directors, appointed by the Governor and General Assembly leadership, which serves as co-trustee and
co-fiduciary of the systems and the trust funds. By law, the Budget and Control Board, which consists of fiva elected
officials, also reviews certain PEBA Board decisions regarding the funding of the Systems and serves as a co-
trustee of the Systems in conducting that review.

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions,
and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Systems and additions to/deductions from
the Systems fiduciary net position have been determined on the accrual basis of accounting as they are reported
by the Systems in accordance with genarally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). For this purpose, revenues
are recognized when eamed and expenses are frecognized when incurred. Benefit and refund expenses are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan. Investments are reported at fair value.

PEBA issues an Annual Comprehensive Financial Report contalning financial statements and required
supplementary information for the South Carolina Retirement Systems' Pension Trust Funds. The Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report is publically available through the Retirement Benefits’ link on PEBA's wabsite at
www.peba.goy, or a copy may be obtained by submitting a request to PEBA, 202 Arbor Lake Drive, Columbia, SC
20223. PEBA is considered a division of the primary government of the state of South Carclina and therefors,
retirement trust fund financial information is also included in the annual comprehensive financial report of the State,

Plan Description

The South Carolina Retirement System (SCRS}, a cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan,
was established effeclive July 1, 1945, pursuant to the provisions of Section 9-1-20 of the South Carolina Code of
Laws for the purpose of providing retirement allowances and other benefits for employees of the state, its public
school districts, and political subdivisions.

The State Optional Retirement Program (ORP) Is a defined contribution plan that is offered as an alternative to
SCRS to certain newly hired state, public school, and higher education employees. State ORP participants direct
the investment of their funds into a plan administered by one of four invesiment providers.

The Sauth Carolina Police Officars Relirement System (PORS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit
pension plan, was established effective July 1, 1962, pursuant to the provisions of Section 9-11-20 of the South
Carolina Code of Laws for the purpose of providing retirement allowances and cther benefits for police officers and
firemen of the state and its political subdivisions.

Membership - Membership requirements are prescribed in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws. A brief
summary of the requirements under each syslem is presented below.

SCRS - Generally, all employees of covered employers, such as the Campus, are required to participate in and
contribute to the system as a condition of employment. This plan covers general employees and teachers and
individuals newly elected to the South Carolina General Assembly beginning with the November 2012 general
election. An employee member of the system with an effective date of membership prior to July 1, 2012 is a Class
Il member. An employee member of the system with an effective date of membership on or after July 1, 2012 s a
Class lll member,
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NOTE § - PENSION PLANS, Continued

ORP - As an aitemative to membership In SCRS, newly hired state, public schoo!, and higher education employees
and individuals newly elected to the S.C. General Assembly beginning with the November 2012 generat election
have the option to participate in the State Optional Retirement Program (State ORP), which Is a defined contribution
plan. State ORP participants direct the investment of their funds into a plan administered by one of four investment
providers. PEBA assumes no liability for State ORP benefits. Rather, the benefits are the liabliity of the investment
providers. For this reason, State ORP programs are not part of the retirement systems' trust funds for financial
statement purposes. Employee and Employer contributions to the State ORP are at the same rates as SCRS. A
direct remittance Is required from the employers to the member’s account with investment providers for the employee
contribution (9.00 percent) and a portion of the employer contribution (5.00 percent). A direct remittance is also
required to SCRS for the remaining poriion of the employer contribution (11.41 percent) and an incidental death
benefit contribution (0.15 percent), if applicable, which is retained by SCRS.

PORS - To be eligible for PORS membership, an employee must be required by the terms of his employment, by
election or appointment, to preserve public order, protect life and property, and detect crimes in the state; fo prevent
and control proparty destruction by fire; or to serve as a peace officer employed by the Department of Corrections,
the Department of Juvenile Justice, or the Department of Mental Health. Probate judges and coroners may elect
membership in PORS. Magistrates are required to participate in PORS for service as a magistrate. PORS
members, other than magistrates and probate judges, must also eam at least $2,000 per year and devote at least
1,600 hours per year to this work, unless exempted by statute. An employee member of the system with an effective
date of membership prior to July 1, 2012 is a Class || member. An employee member of the system with an effactive
date of membership on or after July 1, 2012 is a Class |l member.

Benefits- Benefit terms are prescribed in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws. PEBA does not have the
authority to establish or amend benefit terms withoul a legislative change in the code of laws. Key elements of the
benefit calculation include the benefit multiplier, years of services, and average final compensation. A brief
summary of benefit terms for each system is presented below,

SCRS — A Class Il member who has separated from service with at least five or more years of earned service is
eligible for a monthly pension at age 65 or with 28 years of credited service regardless of age. A member may elect
early retirement with reduced pension benefits payable at age 55 with 25 years of services credit. A Class il member
who has separated from service with at least eight or more years of aared service is efigible for a monthly pension
upon satisfying the Rule of 90 requirement that the total of the member's age and the member's creditable service
equals at least 90 years. Both Class Il and Class Ill members are eligible to receive a reduced deferred annuity at
age 60 if they satisfy the five- or eight-year earned service requirement, respectively.

The benefit formula for full benefits effective since July 1, 1989 for the SCRS is 1.82 percent of an employee's
average final compensation (AFC) multiplied by the number of years of credited service. For Class Il members,
AFC is the average annual eamable compensation during 12 consecutive quarters and includes an amount for up
to 45 days termination pay at retirement for unused annual leave. For Class Ill members, AFC is the average
annual eamable compensation during 20 consecutlve quarters and termination pay for unused annual leave at
retirement is not included. An incldental death benefit is also available to beneficiaries of active and retired
memhers.

The annual retirement allowance of eligible retirees or their surviving annuitants is increased by the lesser of one
percent or five hundred dollars every July 1. Only those annuitants in receipt of a benefit on July 1 the preceding
year are eligible to receive the incraase. Members who retire under the early refirement provisions at age 55 with
25 years of service are not eligible for the benefit adjustment until the second July 1 after reaching the age 60, or
the second July 1 after the date they would have had 28 years of service credit had they not retired,
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PORS ~ A Class Il member who has separated from service with at least five or more years of eamed service Is
eligible for a monthly pension at age 55 or with 25 years of credited service regardiess of age. A Class Il member
who has separated from service with at least eight or more years of eamed service is eligible for a monthiy pension
at age 55 or with 27 years of credited service regardiess of age. Both Class Il and Class Il members are eligible
to recelve a deferred annuity at age 55 with five or eight years of eamed service, respectively. An incidental death
benefit is also available to beneficlaries of active and retired members. Accidental death benefits are also provided
upon the death of an active member working for a covered employer whose death was a natural and proximate
result of an injury incurred while in the performance of duty.

The retirement allowance of eligible retirees or their surviving annuitants is increased by the lesser of one percent
or five hundred dollars every July 1. Only those annultants In receipt of a benefit on July 1 of the praceding year
are aligible to receive the increase,

Disability annuity benefits are available to Class |l members if they have permanent incapacity to perform regutar
duties of the member’s job and they have at least 5 years of earned service (this requirement does not apply if the
disability is a result of a job related injury). Class Il members can apply for disability annuity benefits provided they
have a permanent incapacity to perform the regular duties of the member’s job and they have a minimum of eight
years of credited service. For disability applications received afier December 31, 2013, a member of SCRS will
have to be approved for disability benefits from the Soclal Security Administration in order to be eligible for SCRS
disability retirement benefits. An incidental death benefit equal to an employee's annual rate of compensation is
payable upon the death of an active employee with a minimum of one year of credited service or to a working
retired contributing member. There is no service requirement for death resulting from actual performance of duties
for an active member. For eligible retired members, a lump-sum payment is made to the retiree's beneficiary of up
to $6,000 based on years of service at retirement.

Contributions - Actuarial valuations are performed annually by an external consulting acluary to ensure applicable
contribution rates satisfy the funding parameters specified in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws. Under
these provisions, SCRS and PORS contribution requirements must be sufficient to maintain an amortization period
for the financing of the unfunded actuarlal accrued liabifity (UAAL) over a perlod that does not exceed the number
of years scheduled in state statute. Legislation in 2017 increased, but also established a ceiling for SCRS and
PORS employee contribution rates. Effective July 1, 2017, employea rates were increased to a capped rate of 9.00
percent for SCRS and 9.75 percent for PORS. The legislation also Increased employer contribution rates beginning
July 1, 2017 for both SCRS and PORS by two percentage points and further scheduled employer contribution rates
toincrease by a minimum of one percentage point each year in accordance with state statute. However, the General
Assembly postponed the one percent increase in the SCRS and PORS employer contribution rates that was
scheduled to go into effect beginning July 1, 2020. If the scheduled contributions are not sufficient to meet the
funding periods set in state statute, the board shall increase the employer contribution rates as necessary to meet
the funding periods set for the applicable year. The maximum funding period of SCRS and PORS is scheduled to
be reduced over a ten-year schedule from 30 years beginning fiscal year 2018 to 20 years by fiscal year 2028.

Additionally, the Board s prohibited from decreasing the SCRS and PORS contribution rates until the funded ratio
is at |east 85 percent. If the most recent annual actuarial valuation of the Systems for funding purposes shows a
ratio of the actuarial value of system assets to the actuarial accrued liability of the system (the funded ratio) that is
equal to or greater than 85 percent, then the board, effective on the following July 1, may decreass tha then current
contribution rates upon making a finding that the decrease will not result in a funded ratio of less than 85 percant.
If contribution rates are decreased pursuant to this provision, and the mosi recent annual actuarial valuation of the
system shows a funded ratio of less than 85 percant, then effective on the following July 1, and annually thereafier
as necessary, the board shall increase the then cumrent contribution rates untll a subsequent annual actuarial
valuation of the system shows a funded ratio that Is equal to or greater than 85 percent.
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Required employee contribution rates for fiscal year 2021-2022 are as follows:
SCRS
Employee Class |i 9.00% of eamnable compensation
Employes Class |l 9.00% of eamable compensation
DORP 9.00% of eamable compensation
PORS
Employee Class I 9.75% of eamable compensation
Employee Class Il 9.75% of eamable compensation

Required gmployer contribution rates! for fiscal year 2021-2022 are as follows:

SCRS

Employer Class i 16.41% of earnable compensation
Employer Ciass Il 16.41% of earnable compensation
Employer Incidental Death Benefit 0.15% of earnable compensation
ORP

Employer Contribution? 18.41% of earnable compensation
Employer Incidental Death Benefit 0.15% of earnable compensation
PORS

Employer Class Il 18.84% of earnable compensation
Employer Class Ill 18.84% of earnable compensation
Employer Incidental Death Benefit 0.20% of earnable compensation
Employer Accidental Death Program 0.20% of earnable compensation

1 Calculated on earnable compensation as defined in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws.

2 of this emplayer contribution, 5% of earnable compensation must be remitted by the employer directly to the ORP
vendor to be allocated to the member’s account with the remainder of the employer contribution remitted to the
SCRS.

Net Pension Liabiiity - At June 30, 2022, the Campus reported liabilities of $21,145,671 and $1,358,366 for its
proportionate share of the SCRS and PORS net pension liability, respectively. The net pension liabilities were
measured as of June 30, 2021, and the total pensicn liabilities used to calculate the net pension liabilities were
determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The Campus’ proportionate shares of the net pension liablilities
were based on the Campus’ long-term share of contributions to the pension plans relative to the projected
contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2021, the Campus’ proportionate
shares of the SCRS and PORS plans were 0.098120% and 0.052795%, respectively.

Pension Expense - For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Campus recognized pension expense of $1,572,673
and $118,510 for SCRS and PORS, respectively, for a total pension expense of $1,691,183.
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NOTE $ - PENSION PLANS, Continued

Non-employer Contributions - Employer's proportionate shares were calculated on the basis of employer
contributions remitted to the plan by employers and non-employer contributions appropriated in the State’s budget.
In an effort to offset a portion of the burden of the increased contribution requirement for employers, the General
Assembly funded 1 percent of the SCRS and PORS contribution increases for fiscal year 2021. The State budget
approprliated these funds directly to PEBA and a credit was issued for each emplayer to use when submitting thelr
quarterly remittances to PEBA. For the year ended June 30, 2021 measurement period, PEBA provided non-
employer contribution to the Campus in the amount of $140,866 which is shown as a reduction to net pension
liability and other grant revenue in the year ended June 30, 2022.

Deferrad Inflows of resources and deferred outfiows of resources — At June 30, 2022, the Campus reported
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources for
each of the respective plans:

South Carolina Retirement System
Deferred Outflows  Deferrad Inflows of
of Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 370,564 $ 30.771
Changes of assumptions 1,180,774 -
Net difference betwean proiected and actual eamings

on pension plan investments - 3,312,024
Changes in proportion and differances betwesn Campus

contributions and proporionate share of contributions 37,737 444 567
Campus contributions subsequent to the measurament date 1,854 529 -

Total $ 3,453,604 $ 3,787,362

Police Officers Retirement System
Deferred Qutfiows Deferred Inflows of
of Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 10,445 $ 1,002
Changes of assumptions 21,900 -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings

on pension plan investments - 72,146
Changes in proporton and differences between Campus

contributions and proportionate share of contributions 4,81 43,404
Campus contributions subsequent to the measurement date 36,672 -

Total $ 72,688 $ 116,552

The $1,854,529 and $35,672 reported as deferred outflows of resources related 1o pensions resulting from Campus
contributions subsequent to the measurement date for the SCRS and PORS plans, respectively, during the year
ended June 30, 2022 will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liabilities in the year ending June 30,
2023.
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NOTE § - PENSION PLANS, Continued

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to penslons
will be recognized in pension expense as follows for the SCRS and PORS plans, respectively:

SCRS
Year ended June 30:
2023 $ (262,546)
2024 (235,632)
2025 (405,263)
2026 (1,284 846)
$ {2,188,287)
PORS
Year ended June 30:
2023 $ (15,241)
2024 (18,706)
2025 (18,685)
2026 (26,904)
$ {79,636)

Actuarial Assumptions and Methods - Actuarial valuatlons involve estimates of the reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about
future employment, mortality, and future salary increases. Actuarial assumptions and methods used during the
annual valuation process are subject to periodic revision, typically with an experience study, as actual results over
an extended period of time are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.

South Carolina state statute requires that an actuarial experience study be completed at least once in each five-
year period. An experience report on the Systems was most recently lssued for the period ending June 30, 2019,

The June 30, 2021, total pension liability (TPL), net pension lability (NPL), and sensifivity information were
determined by PEBA's consulling actuary, Gabriel, Roeder, Smith and Company (GRS) and are based on the
actuarial valuation performed as of July 1, 2020. The total pension lability was rolled-forward from the valuation
date to the plan’s fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, using generally accepted actuarial principles.
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NOTE ¢ - PENSION PLANS, Continued

The following table provides a summary of the actuarial assumptions and methods used to calculate the TPL as of
June 30, 2021 for SCRS and PORS.

SCRS PORS
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal Enfry age normal
Investment rate of return * 7.00% 7.00%
Projected salary increases 3.0% to 11.0% (varies by service) ' | 3.5% to 10.5% (varies by service) *
Benefit adjustments lesser of 1% or $500 annually lesser of 1% or $500 annually

! Includes inflation at 2.25%

The post-retiree mortality assumption is dependent upon the member's job category and gender. The base rates
are adjusted for future improvement in mortality using published Scale AA projected from the year 2020.

Assumptions used in the June 30, 2021 TPL are as follows:

Former Job Class Males Females

Educatars 2020 PRSC Males mutiiplied by 85% 2020 PRSC Females multiplied by 94%
General Employees and Members of

the G A bt 2020 PRSC Males mutiiplied by 97% 2020 PRSC Females muliiplied by 107%
Public Safety and Firefighters 020 PRSC Males multipied by 127% | 2020 PRSC Females muliiplied by 107%

Net Pension Liabllity - The NPL is calculated separately for each system and represents that particular system's
TPL determined in accordance with GASB No. 67 less that System's fiduciary net position. As of June 30, 2021,
NPL totals for SCRS and PORS are as follows (amounts expressed in thousands):

Total Pension  Plan Fiduclary Net Employers' Net  Plan Fiduciary Net Position

System Pension Liabllity as a Percentage of the
Liabky Saskion (Asset) Total Pension Liability

SCRS  § 55131,579,363 § 33,490,305,970 $ 21,641,273.393 60.7%

PORS 8,684,586,488  6,111,672.064  2,572,914.424 70.4%

The TPL is calculated by the System’s actuary, and each plan’s fiduciary net position is reported in the System’s
financial statements. The net pension liability is disclosed in accordance with the requirements of GASB 67 in the
System's notes to the financial statements and required supplementary information. Liability calculations performed
by the Systems' actuary for the purpose of satisfying the requirements of GASB Nos. 67 and 68 are not applicable
for other purposes, such as determining the plans’ funding requirements.
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Long Term Expected Rate of Return - The long-term expectad rate of retum on pension plan Investments is
based upon 30 year capltal market assumptions, The long-term expected rate of retums represent assumptions
developed using an arithmetic building block approach primarily based on consensus expectations and market
based inputs. Expected retums are net of investment fees.

The expected returns, along with the expected inflation rate, form the basis for the target asset allocation adopted
at the baginning of the 2021 fiscal year. The long-term expected rate of return is produced by weighting the axpectad
future real rates of raturn by the target allocation percentage and adding expected inflation and is summarized in
the table on the following page. For actuarial purposes, the 7.00 percent assumed annual investment rate of return
used in the calculation of the TPL includes a 4.75 percent real rate of return and a 2.25 percent inflation component.

Expected Long Term Expected
Arithmetic Real Portfolio Real Rate of

Allocation / Exposure Policy Target _ Rate of Return Return
Public Equity ' 46.0% 6.87% 3.16%
Bonds 26.0% 0.27% 0.07%
Private Equity ** 9.0% 9.68% 0.87%
Private Debt * 7.0% 5.47% 0.39%

Real Assets 12.0%
Real Estate ? 9.0% 6.01% 0.54%
Infrastructure 2 3.0% 5.08% 0.16%
Total Expected Return? 100.0% 5.18%
Inflation for Actuarial Purposes 2.25%
7.43%

' The targot weights to Private Equity will be aqual its actual weight, reported by the custodial bank, as of prior month end. When flows
hawe occurred, flow adjusted waighls am used to mone accurately reflec the impact of the assot class weight. Private Equity and Public
Equity combine for 55% of the entire portiolio.

? Staff and Consuitant wil notify the Commission if Private Markets assets exceed 25% of tolal assets.

? Pontable Alpha Stralegles, which ane not included In the Pollcy Target, wil bo capped at 12% of total assets; hedge funds (including all
hadge funds ugsed in porlable alpha implemaentstion) ere copped at 20% of tols! assets.

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the TPL was 7.00 percent. The projection of cash flows used
to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from participating employers will be made based on the
actuarially determined rates based on provisions in the South Carolina Code of Laws. Based on those assumptions,
the System’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all the projected future benefit paymants
of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied
to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the TPL.

Sensitivity Analysis - The following table presents the collective NPL of the Campus calculated using the discount
rate of 7.00 percent, as well as what the Campus’ NPL would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is
1.00 percent lower (6.00 percent) or 1.00 percent higher (8.00 percent) than the current rate.

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liabllity to Changes in the Discount Rate
1.00% Decrease Current Discount 1.00% Increase

System {6.00%) Rate (7.00%) (8.00%)
SCRS $27,814.343 $21,145,671 $15,764,998
PORS 1,970,816 1,358,366 856,676
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NOTE S - PENSION PLANS, Continued

Additional Financlal and Actuarial Information - Detalled Information regarding the fiduclary net position of the
plans administered by PEBA is avallable in the Systems’ audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2021 (including the unmodified audit opinion on the financial statements). Additional actuarial information is
avallable in the accounting and financia! reporting actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021.

Deferred Compensation Plans - Several optional deferred compensation plans are available to State employees
and employers of its political subdivisions. Cerlain employees of the University have elected to participate. The
multiple-employer plans, created under Intemal Revenue Code Sections 457, 401(k), and 403(b), are administered
by third parties and are not included in the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report of the State of South Carolina.
Compensation deferred under the plans Is placed in trust for the contributing employee. The State has no Hability
for losses under the plans. Employees may withdraw the current value of their contributions when they terminate
State employment. Employees may also withdraw contributions prior to termination if they meet requirements
specified by the applicable plan.

- POSTEMPLOYMENT OT

Plan Description - In accordance with the South Carolina Code of Laws and the annual Appropriations Act, the
State provides post-employment health and dental and long-term disability benefits to retired State and school
district employees and their covered dependents. The Campus contributes to the South Carolina Retiree Health
Insurance Trust Fund (SCRHITF) and the South Carolina Long-Term Disability Insurance Trust Fund (SCLTDITF),
cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit postemployment healthcare, and long-term disability plans
administered by the Insurance Benefits Division (IB), a part of the South Carolina Public Employee Benefit Authority
(PEBA). Generally, retirees are eligible for the health and dental benefits if they have established at least ten years
of retirement service credit. For new hires beginning employment May 2, 2008 and after, retirees are eligible for
benefits if they have established 25 years of service for 100 percent employer funding and 15 through 24 years of
service for 50 percent employer funding. Benefits bacome effective when the former employee retires under a State
retirement system. Basic Long-Term Disability (BLTD) benefits are provided to active state, public school district,
and participating local government employees approved for disability.

Funding Policles - Section 1-11-710 of the South Carolina Code of Laws of 1976, as amended, requires these
postemployment and long-term disability benefits be funded through annual appropriations by the General
Assembly for active employees to the IB and participating retirees to the PEBA, except for the portion funded
through the pension surcharge and provided from the other applicable sources of the IB, for its active amployess
who are not funded by State General Fund appropriations. Employers participating in the Retiree Medical Plan are
mandated by State statue to contribute at a rate assessed each year by the Office of the State Budget, .25 percent
of annual covered payroll for 2021, The IB sets the employer contribution rate based on a pay-as-you-go basis.
The Campus pald $1,067,503, including the implicit subsidy, applicable to the surcharge included with the employer
contribution for retirement benafiis for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. BLTD benefits are funded through a
person’s premium charged to State agencies, public school districts, and other participating local govemments. The
monthly premium per active employee paid to IB was $3.22 for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2022. The
SCLTDITF premium is billed monthly by PEBA, insurance Benefits and transferred monthly to the SCLTDITF. Itis
also funded through Investment income.

Effective May 1, 2008 the State established two trust funds through Act 195 for the purpose of funding and
accounting for the employer costs of retiree health and dental insurance benefits and long-term disability insurance
benefits. The SCRHITF is primarily funded through the payroll surcharge. Other sources of funding include
additional State appropriated dollars, accumulated I1B reserves, and income generated from investments. The
SCLTDITF is primarily funded through investment income and employer contributions. The SCLTDITF is
considered immaterial and is not included in the Campus’ financial statements as well as the related notes and
required supplementary information.
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A copy of the separately issued financial statements for the benefit plans and the trust funds may be obtained by
writing to the South Carolina Public Employee Benefit Authority — Insurance Benefits Division, 202 Arbor Lake Drive,
Columbia, South Carolina 29223,

Net OPEB Liabllity - At June 30, 2022, the Campus reported a liability of $35,303,763 for its proportionate share
of the SCRHITF net OPEB liability. The OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2021, and the total OPEB
liabllity used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The
Campus’ proportionate share of the OPEB liability was based on the Campus’ Jong-term share of contribulions to
the postemployment benefits plans relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially
determined. At June 30, 2021, the Campus' proportionate share of the SCRHITF plan was 0.169541%.

OPEB Expense - For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Campus recognized OPEB expense of $2,925,369 for
SCRHITF,

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Post-Employment Benefits

Other Than Penslons (OPEB) — At June 30, 2022, the Campus reported deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

South Carolina Retiree Health Insurance Trust Fund

Deferred Qutflows  Daferred Inflows of
of Resources Resources

Differences between axpectad and actual experience $ 731688 § 801,003
Changes of assumptions 7,350,732 847,262
Net difference betwaen projectad and actual samings

on OPEB plan Investments - 9.515
Changes in proporfion and differences between Campus

condributions and proportionate share of contributions 221,244 1,149,661
Campus contributions subsequent to the measurement date 1,057,503 -

Tota ] 9,361,167 ] 2,808,321

The $1,057,503 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from Campus contributions
subsequent to the measurement date for the SCRHITF plan during the year ended June 30, 2022 will be recognized
as a reduction of the Net OPEB Liability in the year ending June 30, 2023,

The net amount of deferred outflows of resources and deferred infiows of resources related to retiree health benefits
witl be recognized in retiree health benefit expense as follows for the SCRHITF plan:

Year ended June 30:
2023 $ 831,062
2024 814,811
2025 1,096,799
2026 1,122,738
2027 1,020,995
Thereafter 508,938

$ 5,395,343
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Actuarial Assumptions and Methods - Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reportad amounts
and assumptions about the probabllity of occurrence of events far info the future. Examples include assumptions
about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to
continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the
future. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of
short-term volatility in actuarial accrued lisbiiities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term
perspective of the calculations,

The following table provides a summary of the actuarial assumptions and methods used in the June 30, 2020
actuarial valuation for SCRHITF:

Actuarial Methods and

Assumptions:

Actuarial cost method Individual Entry-Age Normal

Inflation 2.26%

Investment rate of return 2,75%, net of OPEB plan investment expense, including inflation
Single discount rate 1.82% as of June 30, 2021

Demographic assumptions Based on the experience study performed for the South Carolina
Retirerment Systems for the 5-year period ending June 30, 2019

Mortality assumptions For healthy refirees, the gender-distinct South Carolina Retirees 2020
Mortality Tables are used with fully generational mortality projections based
on a fully generational basis by the 80% of Scale UMP to account for
future mortality improvements and adjusted with multipiiers based on plan

experience.

Heatthcare trend rate Initial trend starting at 6.00% and gradually decreasing to an ultimate trend
rate of 4.00% over a period of 15 years

Participation assumptions 79% participation for retirees who are eligible for Funded Premiums

59% participation for refirees who are eligible for Partial Funded Premiums
20% participation for retirees who are eligible for Non-Funded Premiums

Notas The discount rate changed from 2.45% as of June 30, 2020 to 1.92% as of
June 30, 2021. In addition, the demographic and salary increases
assumptions were updated to reflect the 2020 SCRS experience study and
the health care trend rates were reset to better reflect the plan's anticipated
experience.

Discount Rate - The Single Discount Rate of 1.92 percent was used to measure the total OPEBR liability for the
SCRHITF. The accounting policy for this plan s to set the Single Discount Rate equal to the prevailing municipal
bond rate. Due to the plan's investment and funding policies, the difference between a blended discount rate and
the municipal bond rate would be less than several basis points {several hundredths of one percent).
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Long Term Expected Rate of Return

Allocation-Welghted

Target Long-Term Expectad Long-Term Expected

Assot Class Allocation Real Rate of Return __Real Rate of Return
U.S. Domestic Fixed Income 80.00% 0.60% 0.48%
Cash 20.00% 0.35% 0.07%
Total 100.00% 0.55%
Expected Inflation 2.25%
Total Retum 2.80%
investment Retum Assumption 2.75%

For the SCRHITF, the annual money-weighted rate of return on the plan investments were 0.39 percent

Sensitlvity Analysis - The following table presents the Campus' proportionate share of the SCRHITF net other
postemployment benefits (OPEB) liability calculated using the discount rate of 1.92 percent, as well as what the
Campus' proportionate share of the net OPEB liabllity would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1
percentage point lower (0.92 percent) or 1 percentage point higher (2.92 percent) than the current rate:

Sensitivity of the SCRHITF Net OPEB Liabllity to Changes in the Discount Rate

Current Single Discount
1% Decrease Rate Assumption 1% Increase
0.92% 1.92% 2.92%
$42,549,846 $35,303,763 $29,591,237

Sensitivity of the Collective Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rate

Regarding the sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates, the following
presents the plan's net OPEB Nability, calculated using the assumed trend rates as well as what the plan's net
OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a trend rate that is one percent lower or one percent higher:

Current Healthcare Cost
1% Decrease Trend Rate Assumption 1% Increase
$28,323,173 $35,303,763 $44,605,322
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- 0. MENTS

The Campus is party to various lawsuits arising out of the normal conduct of its operations. In the opinion of Campus
management, there are no material claims or Jawsuits against the Campus that are not covered by Insurance or
whose sattlement would materlally affect the Campus’ financlal position.

The Campus participates in certain Federal grant programs. These programs are subject to financlal and
compliance audits by the grantor or its representative. Such audits could lead to requests for reimbursement to the

grantor agency for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grant. Management Is not aware of any material
disallowances.,

The Campus had outstanding commitments of $5,693,157 for capltal and $2,174,265 for noncapital projects as of
June 30, 2022, The Campus anticipales funding these projects out of current resources, current and future bond
issues, private gifts, student fees, and state capital improvement bond proceeds.

NOTE 8 - LEASES

Lessee Agreements - The Campus leases land, space and equipment from external parties for various terms
under long-term, non-cancelable lease agreements. The leases expire at various dates through 2027 and provide
for renewal options ranging from one year to ten years. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 87, the Campus
records lease assets and lease liabilities based on the present value of expected payments over the term of the
leases. The expacted payments are discounted using the interest rate charged on the lease, if available, or are
otherwise discounted using the Campus’ incremental borrowing rate (5.26% - 7.51%). Future commitments
for leases having remaining terms in excess of one year as of June 30, 2022 were as follows:

2023 $ 40,421
2024 40,093
2025 16,803
2026 3,645
2027 1,414
Total minimum lease payments 102,376
Less: Interest 8,761
Present value of minimum lease payments $ 93,815

In the current fiscal year, the Campus incurred expenses of $28,670 for office copier contingent rentals on a
cost per copy basis.

NOTE 9 - BONDS AND NOTES PAYABLE
Bonds Payable - Bonds payable consisted of the following:

Original interest Rates  Maturity June 30, 2022 Debt Retired In

Dobt {Outstanding) Dates Balance Fiscal Year 2022

State Institution Bonds
Series 2021C Refunding $ 1,322,000 5% 04/01/31 $ 1,217,000 & 105,000
Total State Institution Bonds 1,217,000 105,000
Subtotal bonds payabie 1,217,000 105,000
Plus unamoriized bond premiums 306,203 34,022
Total Bonds Payable $ 1,523,203 § 139,022
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NOTE 9 - BONDS AND NOTES PAYABLE, Continued

State institution bonds are general obligation bonds of the State backed by the full falth, credit, and taxing power of
the State. Tuitlon revenue is pledged for the payment of principal and interest on state Institution bonds. Tuition
revenue pledged in fiscal year 2022 was $265,529 for state institution bonds.

The Campus belleves it is in compliance with all related bond covenants of Its issued debt.

The scheduled maturities of the Campus' bonds payable by type are as follows:

Principal Interest Total
State Institution Bonds

2023 $ 110,000 $ 60,854 $ 170,854
2024 116,000 55,326 171,326
2025 122,000 49,518 171,518
2026 128,000 43,434 171,434
2027 134,000 37,042 171,042
2028-2031 607,000 7,712 684,712

Total $ 1,217,000 $ 323,886 $ 1,540,886

Notes Payable - Notes payable, which are all direct borrowings, consisted of the following:

Note payable to acquire energy savings equipment, dated April 2018, payable in

annual installiments of $49,399 subject to amount drawn at any given time, $ 319,712
matures February 2029, fixad interest rate of 2.00%.

The scheduled maturities of the notes payabls are as follows:

Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 43005 § 6394 § 49,399
2024 43,865 5,634 49,399
2025 44,742 4,657 49,399
2026 45,637 3,762 49,399
2027 46,550 2,848 49,399
2028-2029 85,913 2,887 98,800
Total - $ 318,712 § 26083 § 345,795
NOTE 10 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Long-term liability activity was as follows:
Dua Within Long-Term
June 30, 2021 __Additions Reductions  _June 30, 3022 __ One Year Portlen
Bonds Payable:
Stale Institution Bonds 1,322000 _$ = _§ 105000 $ 1217000 _§ 110000 _$ 1,167,000
Subiotal Bonds Payable 1,322,000 - 105,000 1,217,500 110,000 1,107,000
Unamartized Bond Premiums 340,225 . 34022 206,203 34023 272,180
Toted Bonds Payable 1,662 226 - 138,022 1,623,203 144,023 1,379,160
Notes Payabio 361,874 . 42,182 319,742 43,005 278,797
Total Bonds and Notes Payable _§ 2024099 § = 3 191,184 8 1842915 § 187028 _§ 1658887
Leass Obligations S 12034 § 9303 § 002 $ 93615 $ 35189 $ 58428
Accrued Compensated Absances $ 955014 3 BO4TS4 0§ B34 3 000454 S SITAZ2 0§ 63032
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The Beaufort-Jasper Higher Education Commission (the Commission) was created in 1994 by the General
Assembly of South Carclina. The Commission’s primary purpose Is to provide support and encouragement for all
undertakings to improve the higher education oppertunities for the benefit of the citizens and residents of Beaufort
and Jasper Counties. The Commission serves as the liaison between the Campus and the Beaufort and Jasper
communities as well as the oversight committee for campus dormitories and the student center including the
construction and management of those faclliies. The Campus received $2,258,351 in gifts from the Commission
and paid $6,942,442 to the Commission for housing and dining fees collected on their behalf. Management performs
an annual review of this relationship to ensure continued compliance with accounting slandards. Complete financial

statements for the Commission can be obtained at 1 University Boulevard, Bluffton, SC 208909, Attention: Beth
Patrick.

OTE 12 - RISK MAN MENT

The Campus has a comprehensive risk management program which incorporates the fundamentals of risk
identification, risk evaluation, risk control, and risk financing alternatives In reducing loss potential. The Campus
mitigates the financial consequences of physical, human, and financial loss by purchasing insurance through the
State Fiscal Accountabllity Authority Board Office of the Insurance Reserve Fund (IRF). As needed, the IRF policles
are supplomented by the purchase of policies through the private insurance market. Several sections of the South
Carolina Code of Laws authorize and require the State Fiscal Accountability Authority Board, through the IRF, to
provide insurance to governmantal enlities. These statutes in turn require most state entities to purchase insurance
through the IRF. These sections include:

Title 1 - Administration of Government, Section 1-11-140 - 141, Authority to provide tort liability insurance to
governmental entilies, their employess, and charitable medical facilities.
Title 1 - Administration of Government: Section 1-11-147. Automobile Liability Reinsurance.

Title 10 - Public Buildings and Property: Section 10-7-10 through 10-7-40. Authority to insure public buildings
and contents.

Title 10 - Public Buildings and Property: Section 10-7-12. Authority to purchase reinsurance.

Title 10 - Public Buildings and Property: Section 10-7-130. Authority to hold monies paid as premiums for the
purpose of paying Insured losses.

Title 11 - Publle Finance: Section 11-9-75. Debt Collection Procedures.

Title 15 - Clvil Remedles and Procedures: Section 15-78-10 through 15-78-150. $.C. Governmental Tort Claims
Act. Authority fo provide liability insurance.

Title 38 - insurance: Section 38-13-190. Requires South Carolina Insurance Department Audits of Insurance
Reserve Fund Finance.

Title 59 - Education: Section 53-67-710 & §9-67-790. Authority to insure school buses and pupils transported by
school bus.

Title 59 - Education: Section §9-67-730. Pupil Injury Fund.

The IRF functions as a governmental insurance operation with the mission to provide insurance specifically
designed to meet the needs of governmental entities at the lowest possible cost. The IRF operates like an Insurance
company, by issuing policies, collecting premiums (based on actuarially calculated rates), and by paying claims
from the accumulated premiums in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Insurance policies it has Issued.

All premiums received by the IRF are deposited with the Office of the State Treasurer where the funds are
maintained as the IRF Trust Account. By statutory requirement, these funds are to be used to pay claims and
operating expenses of the fund. The Office of the State Treasurer is responsible for investing these funds. The
costs of settled claims have not exceeded the Campus' insurance coverage in any of the past three years.
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NOTE 12 - RISK MANAGEMENT, Continued

The IRF uses no agents, brokers, or advertising, and does not actively solicit accounts. The lack of a profit motive and
the lack of acquisition expenses such as agents’ commissions, along with the use of the investment income In rate
determination allow the IRF to maintain the lowest possible rate structure, Not all govemmental enlities elect to purchase
their insurance through the IRF. The South Carolina Tort Claims Act afiows political subdivisions of the State access
to other mechanisms to meet their insurance needs at their discretion. Some entities participate in other self-insurance
poofs, some purchase commercial insurance, and some slect to self-insure their insurance exposures.

The various types of insurance policies maintained by the Campus include: Building and Personal Property, Infand
Marine, Ocean Marine, Data Processing Equipment, Business Interruption, Builders' Risk, Automobile, Directors
and Officers Liability, General Tort Liability, Cyber Liability, Medical Professional Liabllity, Employee Crime, and
Workers' Compensation.

NOTE 13 - OPERATING EXPENSES BY FUNCTION
Operating expenses by functional classification are summarized as follows:
Salaries Fringe Services snd Scholarships

o Wapes ~_ Benafts = Supplies = Utilties and Fellowships _Deprecimtion  _ Total
tnstruction $ asweEl $ 33T § 17T 0§ - 8 ™ 8 - $ 13075888
Rescereh 455,463 161,666 679,238 . 14,808 - 1,611,181
Public service 358,976 156,738 604,645 51 23,339 - 1,183,750
Acadenic support 2,180,624 854,018 885,002 - 2% - 3,809,033
Student senvices 2,818,877 1,016,044 1,889,172 . 141,831 - 5,847,124
InstiLgonel support 1,244,485 455,603 2,022 207 42138 74274 - 3,838 18
Cparsfion and plant meinkenshce 1,651,742 673.873 1,243,620 998,427 - - 4,537,082
Awilary anterprissa - - a74 - - - 074
Scholerships and felowships . 12,020 6740 . 4,620,074 . 4,847,843
Depreclaton . - - . - 2084222 2,084,222
Pomsion and OPEB sxpense 1,661,730 - - 1,681,738

Total operating expenses $ 17000490 $ 6350485 § BE20480 § 1040817 § ABALIIG 0§ 2084222 $ 42,079,032

NOTE 14 - ENDOWMENTS

The Campus holds $79,000 in restricted nonexpendable true endowments. The University of South Carolina
Educational Foundation and the University of South Carolina Development Foundation, component units of the
University, holds and invests scholarship and general purposes endowment funds for the Campus. As of June 30,
2022 the endowment balances held by the Foundations were $9,205,478.

NOTE 15 ~ PRIOR PERIOD RESTATEMENT

During the prior fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the University received notice of $6,250,000 of
capital appropriations available from the State for the Beaufort campus. During the current fiscal year, the
University determined that these funds should have been recognized in accordance with GASB Statement
No. 33 even though the funds had not been drawn down from the State. The recognition of the related revenue
and accounts receivable resulted in a prior period restatement of $6,250,000 which is reflected as a
restatement to the beginning net position for the current fiscal year on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses,
and Changes in Net Position.

Had these appropriations been appropriately recognized in the prior fiscal year, state capital appropriations
revenue and accounts receivable would have each increased by $6,250,000 and the prior year change in net
position would have increased by the same amount.
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As of June 30

South Carolina Retirement System {SCRS)

Campus’ Campug' Campus’ Proportionate Share Plan Fiduclary Net
Proportion of the  Proportionate Share Campus' Covered of the Net Pension Liabllityas  Position as a Pescentage
For tha Net Pension of the Net Pension Payrofl Buring the # Percentage of Its Coverad of the Total Penston
Year Liabllity Liabllity Measursmant Perlod Payroll Liability
2022 0.098120% $ 21,145,671 $ 6,762,593 312.65% 60.70%
2021 0.097557% 25,680,004 6,671,421 384.93% $0.70%
2020 0.098127% 23,315,871 6,455,360 361.19% 54.40%
2019 0.098510% 22,756,172 6,486,391 350.83% 54.10%
2018 0.098380% 22,947,678 6,615,447 346.88% 53.30%
1017 0.096257% 20,560,327 6,513,631 315.65% 52.91%
2016 0.097930% 18,572,899 6,289,970 295.28% 56.99%
2015 0.098130% 16,895,216 6,068,783 278.40% 59.90%
2014 0.098130% 17,600,629 6,170,081 285.26% 56.39%
Pollce Officars Retirement System (PORS)
Campus' Campus’ Campus' Proportionate Share Plan Fiduciary Net
Proportion ofthe  Proportionate Share Campus’ Coverad of the Net Pension Liablity as Position as » Percentage
For the Net Pension of the Net Penslon Payroll During the a Parcentage of lts Covered of tha Total Pension
Year Liability Liability Measurement Period Payreil Liabllity
2022 0.052795% $ 1,358,366 $ 796,059 170.64% 70.40%
2021 0.048930% 1,622,626 755,846 214.68% 58.80%
2020 0.045300% 1,299,284 662,669 195.92% 62.70%
2019 0.044480% 1,260,261 621,594 202.75% 61.70%
2018 0.016580% 454,150 589,140 77.09% 60.90%
2017 0.041745% 1,058,854 536,667 197.30% 60.44%
2016 0.035610% 776,111 455,335 170.45% 64.57%
201% 0.035050% 670,918 422,673 158.73% 67.50%
2014 0.035050% 726,480 398,942 182.10% 62.98%

This schedule is intended to show ten years of comparative data. Additiona! years will be added to the schedule as they become avallable.
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South Carolina Retirement System (SCRS)

Contractually Contributions as a
For the Required Contributions Made Contribution Campus’ Partion of Coverad
Year Contribution 1o Penslon Plan Deficlency (Excess) Covered Payroll Payroll
2022 s 1,854,529 $ 1,854,529 $ - $ 6,865,629 27.01%
2021 1,708,142 1,708,142 - 6,762,593 25.26%
2020 1,677,983 1,677,983 - 6,671,421 25.15%
2019 1,482,430 1,482,430 - 6,455,360 22.96%
2018 1,231,533 1,231,533 - 6,486,391 18.99%
2017 1,146,987 1,146,987 - 6,615,447 17.34%
2016 1,054,396 1,054,396 . 6,513,631 16.19%
2015 983,314 983,314 - 6,289,970 15.63%
2014 944,325 944,325 - 6,068,783 15.56%
Police Officers Retirament System (PORS)
Contractually Contributions as a
For the Required Contributions Mads Contribution Campus' Portion of Covered
Year Contribution to Pension Plan Deficlency {Excess) Covered Payroll Payrall
2022 35672 35672 § . 3 855,380 a4.17%
2021 31,861 31,361 . 796,059 4.00%
2020 34,745 34,745 - 755,846 4.60%
2019 33,536 33,536 662,669 5.06%
2018 99,977 99,977 621,594 16.08%
2017 83,894 83,894 585,140 14.24%
2016 73,124 73,124 . 536,667 13.63%
2015 60,712 60,712 - 455,335 13.33%
2014 54,121 54,121 422,673 12.80%

This schedule is intended to show ten years of camparative data. Additional years will be added to the schedule as they become available.
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As of June 30

South Carolina Retiree Heafth Insurance Trust Fund {SCRHITF)

Plan Fiduclary Net
Campus’ Campux’ Proportionste  Cempus’ Covered Payroll  Campus’ Praportionate Share of Posltionas a
Forthe Proportionofthe Shareof the Net OPEB  During the Measurement the Net OPEB Uability as a Parcantage of the Total

Year _ Net OPED Uabllity Ushility Period Percartage of its Covered Payroll OPEB Liabllity

2022 0.169541% [ 35,303,763 § 16,462,955 214.44% 7.48%
2021 0.171937% 31,019,024 16,263,037 190.73% 8.39%
2020 0.174888% 26,445,708 15,327,845 172.53% 8.44%
2019 0.177903% 25,209,904 15,107,340 166.87% 7.91%
2018 0.174644% 23,655,309 14,772,063 160.14% 7.60%
2017 0.174644% 25,268,669 13,272,860 190.38% 7.60%

This schedule is Intended to show ten years of comparative data. Additional years will be added ta the schedule as they become availahle.
The SCLTDITF is considered immaterial and is nat included in the Campus' financial statements.



UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH CAROLINA - Beaufort
Schedule of the Campus’ Contributions
Related to the OPEB Liability
For the Years Ended June 30

South Caroling Ratiree Health insurance Trust Fund (SCRHITF)

Contributions asa
For the Cantractually Contributions Mada Cantribution Campus’ Covered Percentage of Covered
Year  Reguired Contribution to Plan Deficlancy (Excess) Payrofl Payroll
2022 1,057,503 5 1,087,503 § - 16,888,698 6.26%
200 1,002,126 1,002,126 - 16,462,955 6.09%
2020 938,915 938,915 - 16,263,037 5.71%
2019 924,501 924,501 - 15,327,845 6.03%
018 825,729 825,729 - 15,107,340 5.47%
2017 747,351 787,351 - 14,772,063 5.33%

This schedule is intended to show ten years of comparative data. Addit:onal years wil| be added ta the schedule as they become available.
The SCLTOITF is considared immaterial and is not included in the Campus’ financial statemaents.



CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
\ A ClAconnect.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Board of Trustees
University of South Carolina
Columbia, South Carolina

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financlal audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type
activities and the discretely presented component unit of the University of South Carolina- Beaufort (the
Campus), a campus of the University of South Carolina (the University), as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
Campus’ basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 18, 2022.

The financial statements of the Beaufort-Jasper Higher Education Commission, the discretely
presented component unit, were not audited in accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards and
accordingly this report does not include reporting on internal control over financial reporting or
reportable noncompliance associated with the discretely presented component unit.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Campus’ internal
control over financial reporting (intemal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Campus’

internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Campus’ intemal
control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficlency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in intemal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control

that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

k)



The Board of Trustees
University of South Carolina- Beaufort

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to idenlify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencles
may exist that were not identified. We identified a certain deficiency in internal control, described in the
accompanying schedule of findings as item 2022-BEA-001 that we consider to be a material weakness.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Campus' financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certaln provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Campus’ Response to Findings

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the Campus'
response to the findings identified in our audit and described in the accompanying schedule of findings
and responses. The Campus' response was not subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the financlal statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Audifing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

WM?&M«_ L2
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Charlotte, NC
November 18, 2022



Financial Statement Findings and Responses

2022-BEA-001
Type of Finding: Material Weakness in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Criterla or specific requirement: Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
controls, Including monitoring, and correcting to ensure fair presentation of its financial statements, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Condition: The Campus did not recognize revenue timely for certain capital appropriation reserve
funds in the year appropriated which was a departure from GASB Statement No. 33. GASB Statement
No. 33 states that capital appropriations and other similar transactions (referred to as voluntary
nonexchange transactions) should be recognized when all eligibility requirements are met. GASB 33
eligibility requirements includes a) required characteristics of the recipient, b) time requirements, c)
reimbursement requirements, and d) contingencies.

Context: This condition, which was Identified by the Campus, resulted in an understatement of
revenues In the amount of $6,250,000 relating to years prior to Fiscal Year 2022 (FY22). Beginning net
position was adjusted in FY22 to recognize these amounts.

Cause: The Campus was using a more conservative approach of recording the revenue when funds
were drawn down from the state, which resulted in not properly applying GASB Statement No. 33.

Effect: Fiscal year 2022 capital appropriations revenue included $6,250,000 that should have been
recognized in prior years.

Repeat Finding: No

Recommendation: The Campus should ensure revenue recognition processes follow GASB
Statement No. 33 and develop a process to review all capital appropriations annually to ensure timely
revenue recognition.

Views of respansible officlals and planned corrective actions: Campus management agrees with
the audit finding and will ensure appropriate processes are in place for timely revenue recognition,

The Campus has subsequently taken steps to ensure the appropriate processes are in place to perform
these tasks.

Action taken In response to finding: The Campus identified during fiscal year end prior year capital
appropriations that had not been drawn due to projects not being established. In response to this, the
Campus discussed with SC Comptroller General's Office how the State of South Carolina was treating
these appropriations. It was determined that the Campus would need to recognize these capital
appropriations from prior years as an adjustment to beginning net position in FY22 in the amount of
$6,250,000. The Campus established a procedure to record all capital appropriations as revenue
during the year appropriated.

Name of the contact person responsible for corrective actlon: Mandy Kibler, Associate
Vice President and University Controller

Planned completion date for corrective action plan: The Campus corrected the prior year capital

appropriations in FY22 as an adjustment to beginning net position during our fiscal year end close
process.



AGENDA ITEM:
Budget Workshop

Election Commission
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AGENDA ITEM:

Item # 7
PROCLAMATION



PROCLAMATION

Whereas, the Jasper County Council would like to recognize the untimely and
sudden death of Reverend Samuel Gregory; and

Whereas, the Jasper County Council would like to recognize Reverend Samuel

Gregory as a native of South Carolina, and for his 12 years of service on the Jasper
County Council; and

Whereas, Reverend Samuel Gregory served as a Councilman, Vice Chairperson
and Chairperson in Jasper County on the Jasper County Council; and

Whereas, Reverend Samuel Gregory was devoted to serving his county and
community as a prominent leader in Jasper County,

Whereas, Reverend Samuel Gregory was devoted to serving his county and
retired from the Jasper County School System,

Whereas, Reverend Samuel Gregory served as a Pastor most of his adult life of
several churches; and

Whereas, in recognition of Reverend Samuel Gregory’s to dedication to J asper

County, his Pastoral Work, the Jasper County School System, and the Jasper County
Council;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND

PROCLAI'MED, tnat Jasper County Council in recognition of these

contributions to Jasper County, be it known, this /7" day of April, 2023 that this
proclamation has been adopted by the Jasper County Council duly assembled.

L. Martin Sauls IV, Chairman

Attest:

Wanda Simmons, Clerk to Council (Seal)



AGENDA ITEM:

Item # 8
PRESENTATION

** No information was provided for this

presentation for the e-packet**



AGENDA ITEM:

Item

9

PUBLIC HEARING OF AN
ORDINANCE

**No vote will be taken**

For information see the ordinance in your April 6*
Agenda Packet
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
JASPER COUNTY

ORDINANCE #0-2023 -06

AN ORDINANCE OF
JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL

To extend the date by which certain property subject
to a Development Agreement entered into by the
County and Conduit Street Partners, LLC (CSP) must
be conveyed by the property’s current owner to the
developer thereof, to allow for additional time for the
developer to complete the full entitlement of the
property, and matters related thereto.

WHEREAS, Conduit Street Partners, LLC (the “Developer”), by virtue of a
contract to purchase, has an equitable interest in certain lands suitable for
development, consisting of 38.84 acres, more or less, bearing Jasper County Tax
Map Number 041-00-03-030, located along Highway 278, approximately 2 miles
east of [-95, Exit 8, and known as CSP Development PDD (the “Property”);

WHEREAS, the County and the Developer negotiated the terms of a development
agreement for a proposed residential development on the Property (the “Project™);

WHEREAS, on June 27, 2022, the Jasper County Council passed Ordinance O-
2022-14, recorded in Book 1107, Page 1678 of the Jasper County Register of Deeds,
which ordinance approved the County’s entry into and execution of the
development agreement that had been negotiated between the County and the
Developer (the “Development Agreement”).

WHEREAS, Ordinance O-2022-14 further contained a provision (in Paragraph 2
thereof) that instituted a deadline of June 30, 2023, by which the Developer must
acquire legal title to the Property (the “Acquisition Deadline”); otherwise, the
Development Agreement would automatically be null and void. The phrase
imposing the Acquisition Deadline read as follows:

“To the extent the Property is not conveyed to the Owner/Developer by the
current legal owner by June 30, 2023, then the Development Agreement
shall be void, regardless of any execution by the Council Chairman and
delivery by the County Administrator on behalf of the County.”



WHEREAS, the Developer has diligently pursued, at significant expense, all
necessary permits and approvals required by the County in connection with the
Project, including the preparation of master plans, site engineering drawings,
grading, erosion/sediment control, water, sewer, roads, storm drainage
conveyance systems, and stormwater management.

WHEREAS, the Developer has submitted its application for a nationwide
jurisdictional wetlands delineation for the Property, which is currently pending
with the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers.

WHEREAS, the Developer intends to acquire legal title to the Property only after
all such entitlements for the Property can be obtained, since the obtainment of all
such entitlements are a prerequisite for obtaining the financing necessary to fund
the Developer’s acquisition of the Property.

WHEREAS, Jasper County has accordingly received a request from the
Developer to pass a new Ordinance to extend the Acquisition Deadline through
December 31, 2023, to aliow the Developer sufficient time to obtain all
necessary entitlements for the Property and/or the Project.

WHEREAS, in order to extend the Acquisition Deadline, it is not necessary to
amend the Development Agreement, since the Development Agreement does not
contain a reference to the Acquisition Deadline, which was imposed only by
Ordinance 0-2022-14.

WHEREAS, after giving the matter consideration, the Jasper County Council has
determined that it would be appropriate to pass a new ordinance to supersede
Ordinance 0-2022-14 (only to the extent of the Acquisition Deadline set forth
therein) in order to extend the Development Agreement to December 31, 2023.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the Jasper County Council, duly
assembled and with authority of same, that the above premises be incorporated by
reference; and:

1. The last sentence of Paragraph 2 of Ordinance 0-2022-014, which
references a deadline of June 30, 2023 in connection with the Development
Agreement for the above-referenced Property and Project, is hereby
nullified and superseded by the deadline in the paragraph below.

2. To the extent the Property is not conveyed to the Developer by the current
legal owner by December 31, 2023, then the Development Agreement
shall be void, regardless of any execution by the Council Chairman and
delivery by the County Administrator on behalf of the County.

3. The extension of the Acquisition Deadline effected by this Ordinance shall
not require any amendment or modification of the Development Agreement
between the Developer and Jasper County. Accordingly, the terms of such



Development Agreement shall remain in effect, subject to the new deadline
set forth above.

4. This ordinance shall take effect upon approval by Council.

Martin L. Sauls, IV
Chairman

ATTEST:

Wanda Simmons
Clerk to Council

ORDINANCE: # 0-2023-06

First Reading: 03.20.2023
Public Hearing: 04.03.2023
Second Reading: 04.03.2023
Third Reading: 04.17.2023
Adopted: 04.17.2023

Reviewed for form and draftsmanship by the Jasper County Attorney.

David Tedder Date



Resolution of County
Supporting the South Carolina American Revolution
Sestercentennial Commission
and

Recognizing and Approving of the
County 250 Commiittee

Whereas South Carolina created the South Carolina American Revolution
Sestercentennial Commission (250th Anniversary Commission also known as SC250);

Whereas the mission of the SC250 Commission is to celebrate and promote
South Carolina’s role in the American Revolution by educating, engaging, and inspiring
South Carolinians and visitors;

Whereas the SC250 Commission is seeking partnerships with counties and
municipalities to further its mission;

Whereas this partnership will be formed by creating a local committee called
the County 250 Commiittee.

Whereas the County 250 Committee will focus on important events,
people, and places during the Revolutionary Era within County to
promote, observe and celebrate County’s role in the American Revolution
by educating, engaging, and inspiring South Carolinians and visitors; and

Whereas local projects (i.e. creating visitable historical sites to attract tourists,
supporting celebrations, restoring local historical markers, rebuilding local historical
infrastructure, etc.) will enhance historical tourism opportunities

Now, therefore be it
RESOLVED, that County Council:

1. Hereby recognizes the County 250 Committee as its official
committee.

2. Will partner with the South Carolina American Revolution Sestercentennial
Commission (SC250).

3. WIill support initiatives of the SC250 Commission; and

4. Will support the County 250 Committes in its locai efforts to

educate, engage, and inspire South Carolinians and our visitors, thereby
enhancing historical tourism opportunities in County.



BE REVOLUTIONARY!

1770-1783 | 2020-2033

YES, THERE WILL BE FIREWORKS,
BUT SO MUCH MORE!

—_—

YOUR COUNTY 250 COMMITTEE CAN:
TELL YOUR COUNTY'S REVOLUTIONARY ERA STORIES
& SUPPORT HISTORIC TOURISM INFRASTRUCTURE

Step 1) Make your County 250 Committee official by passing a resolution in
support of [County Name] County 250 Committee (see sample resolution at
SouthCarolinazso.com/Iocal-county-zso-commlttee/).
Best Practices:
¢+ Decide if the county or another agency or non-profit will be "the bank* for the
committee. (Please note for SC250 grants Local Governmaents may designate
third-party recipients like non-profit organizations to receive grant money.)
+ As the County 250 Committes gathers stakeholders, encourage them to be
intentional about inclusion - representing all members of your community.
* Also, encourage the Committee to not just recruit local historians but people
from other sectors, too (teachers, tou rism/marketing gurus, artists, etc, )

I Step 2} Apply for start up funding. All officially recognized County 250

Committees are eligible for a noen-compaetitive $3000 grant meant to
support initial organizational and planning expenses.
Best Practices:
* Learn more and apply at SouthCarolinaZSO.comlCountyZSOOrganizingGrantsl
* Beyond thls organizing grant. six more grant programs are coming soon and
will help with everything from museum style panels to site acquisition.

Step 3) Research your Revolutionary Era assets and plan for tourists.
Best Practices:
¢ There will be an SC250 Grant to assjst counties with this study!

* Celebrate your county's specific people, places, principles, and events.
* e

History Means Business: Ninety Six,
SC (home to a little under 2000
skirmishes. and bloodshed associated — people) saw over 95,600 visitors at
with the American Revolution in South LIBERTY the American Revolution National
Carolina - demonstrating the v R‘ ’? L o Park site during 2020. The Liberty
importance of Southern Campaigns to ” Trail (SC Battleground Preservation
the founding of our country. TR 1= Trust & American Battlefield Trust)

JE T will connect sltes such as this one
and many more.

For More Info Visit SouthCarolina250.com or Call 803-898-3392.

Turning the Tide of the War: 5C has
over 00+ documanted battles,
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OFFICE OF THE JASPER COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR

358 Third Avenue - Courthouse Square - Post Office Box 1149
Ridgeiand, South Carolina 29936 - 843-717-3690 - Fax: 843-726-7800

Andrew P. Fulghum

County Administrator
aful jasperco ZOV
Administrator’s Report
April 17, 2023
1. Dominion Energy’s Application for Certificate of Environmental Compatibility and

Public Convenience and Necessity for new Electric Infrastructure:

Following this report is the Company’s application to the Public Service
Commission of South Carolina re: the construction and operation of the Jasper-
Okatie 230 kV Line No. 2 and the Okatie-Riverport 230 kV Line and substation.

2. City of Hardeeville Workforce Training Partnership Proposal;
City of Hardeeville staff have approached the Beaufort County Administrator and
me with a proposal for the two Counties to become partners in expanding the

City’s Workforce Training program. I will provide a summary of our discussions
thus far.

For your review, 1 have provided background information and a proposal for
Jasper County dated April 5, 2023.

The County Administrator’s Progress Report and any miscellaneous
correspondence, agendas, and minutes follow this report.

Page10of1
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Senior Counse!
Cominion Energy Services, Inc.

220 Operation Way. MC C222, Cayce. 5C 28033
DominionEnergy_com
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March 31, 2023

HAND DELIVERY
The Honorable Jocelyn G. Boyd
Chief Clerk/Executive Director
Public Service Commission of South Carolina
101 Executive Center Drive
Columbia, South Carolina 29210

RE: Dominion Energy South Carolina, Inc.
Application for a Certificate of Environmental Compatibility and
Public Convenience and Necessity

Dear Ms. Boyd:

Enclosed for filing on behalf of Dominion Energy South Carolina, Inc. (“DESC”
or “Company”) is the Company’s Application for a Certificate of Environmental
Compatibility and Public Convenience and Necessity for the Construction and
Operation of the Jasper — Okatie 230 kV Line No. 2, the Okatie — Riverport 230 kV
Line, the Riverport 230 kV Substation, and Associated Facilities (“Application”). This
Application is filed pursuant to the provisions of S.C. Code Ann. § 58-33-10 et seq.
(2015) and S.C. Code Ann. Reg. 103-304 (2012).

By copy of this letter, we are also serving the South Carolina Office of
Regulatory Staff and others as required by statute with a copy of the enclosed
Application and attach a certificate of service to that effect. In compliance with S.C.
Code Ann. § 58-33-120(2), this letter shall also serve as notice that the Application
was filed with the Public Service Commission of South Carolina on March 31, 2023.

If you have any questions, please advise.
Very truly yours,
/ I
s W
/ {’/(Ua/w M'ftdj%
Matthew W. Gissendanner

MWG/kms

Enclosures



The Honorable Jocelyn Boyd
March 31, 2023

Page 2

cCl

Ms. Nanette S. Edwards
Mr. Christopher M. Huber, Esquire
Dr. Edward Simmer
Mur. Robert H. Boyles, Jr.
Mr. Duane Parrish
Ms. Christy Hall
Mr. W. Eric Emerson
Mr. Adam King
Hon. L.. Martin Sauls, IV
Mzr. Andrew P. Fulghum
Ms. Lisa Wagner
Hon. Harry Williams
Mr. Michael J. Cyzmbor
Ms. Brana Snowden
(all via electronic mail and U.S. mail)




BEFORE
THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF
SOUTH CAROLINA
DOCKET NO.2023-__ -E
IN RE:

Application of Dominion Energy South
Carolina, Inc. for a Certificate of
Environmental Compatibility and Public
Convenience and Necessity for the
Construction and Operation of the Jasper -
Okatie 230 kV Line No. 2, the Okatic
Riverport 230 kV Line, the Riverport 230
kV Substation, and Associated Facilities.

APPLICATION FOR CERTIFICATE OF
ENVIRONMENTAL COMPATIBILITY
AND PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND
NECESSITY

Tt wat wt” “nart st mat s St S’ “emd' et

Dominion Energy South Carolina, Inc. (“DESC or “Company™) hereby applies to the
Public Service Commission of South Carolina (“Commission”) for a Certificate of
Environmental Compatibility and Public Convenience and Necessity (“Certificate™) to construct
and operate the Jasper — Okatie 230 kV Line No. 2, the Okatie - Riverport 230 kV Line, the
Riverport 230 kV Substation, and Associated Facilities (collectively, the “Lines and Substation™)
in Jasper County, South Carolina. This Application is filed pursuant to the provisions of S.C.
Code Ann. § 58-33-10 et seq. (2015) and S.C. Code Ann. Reg. 103-304 (2012).
In support of this Application, DESC would respectfully show unto this Commission:
1. Applicant. DESC is a corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of
South Carolina, with its principal offices at 220 Operation Way, Cayce, South Carolina

29033. The Company is engaged in, among other things, the business of generating,



transmitting, delivering and providing electricity to public and private energy users for
compensation.
2. Project Description.
NAME OF LINE: Jasper — Okatie 230 kV Line No. 2
EXTENDING FROM: - Jasper Substation in Jasper County, South Carolina
TO: Okatie Substation in Jasper County, South Carolina
ESTIMATED LENGTH: 6.6 MILES

WIDTH OF RIGHT-OF-WAY: 100 FEET

DESIGN VOLTAGE: 230kV

CONDUCTOR: Bundled 1272 ACSR

NORMAL CAPACITY: 950 MVA (Continuous Rating)
CONFIGURATION: Single Circuit — Braced-Post Insulators

TYPES OF STRUCTURES: Single Pole (Single Circuit) Tangent Structures and

Single Pole (Single Circuit) Angle Structures
ESTIMATED NOMINAL HEIGHT: 95 to 120 FEET (typical)
AREAS IN WHICH FACILITIES ARE TO BE LOCATED IN SOUTH CAROLINA:
COUNTIES: Jasper County
MUNICIPALITIES: Hardeeville

NAMES OF NATIONAL OR STATE PARKS OR FORESTS DIRECTLY AFFECTED
OR THE NEAREST FACILITY:  None are directly affected.

MAJOR WATERWAYS: None
MAIJOR HIGHWAYS: Interstate 95

U).S Highways 17/278 and 321
S.C. Highway 34

Tl



NAME OF LINE: Okatie — Riverport 230 kV Line

EXTENDING FROM: Okatie Substation in Jasper County, South Carolina
TO: Proposed Riverport Substation in Jasper County
ESTIMATED LENGTH: 12.4 MILES

WIDTH OF RIGHT-OF-WAY: 150 FEET

DESIGN VOLTAGE: 230 kv

CONDUCTOR: Single 1272 ACSR

NORMAL CAPACITY: 474.1 MV A (Continuous Rating)

CONFIGURATION: Single Circuit — Braced-Post Insulators;
Double Circuit - Back to Back Vertical

TYPES OF STRUCTURES: Single Pole (Single Circuit) Tangent and Angle
Structures (from Hardeeville Tap to Riverport
Substation);

Single Pole (Double Circuit) Tangent and Angle
Structures (from Okatie Substation to Hardeeville
Tap)
ESTIMATED NOMINAL HEIGHT: 95 to 120 FEET (typical)
AREAS IN WHICH FACILITIES ARE TO BE LOCATED IN SOUTH CAROLINA:
COUNTIES: Jasper County
MUNICIPALITIES: Hardeeville

NAMES OF NATIONAL OR STATE PARKS OR FORESTS DIRECTLY AFFECTED
OR THE NEAREST FACILITY:  None are directly affected

MAJOR WATERWAYS: None
MAJOR HIGHWAYS: Interstate 95

U.S. Highways 17, 278, and 321
SC Highways 31, and 34



NAME OF STATION: Riverport 230 kV Substation
LOCATION: Hardeeville, South Carolina, near U.S. Highway 17
DESIGN MVA CAPACITY (230 kV BUS): 474.1
DESIGN NOMINAL OPERATING VOLTAGES: 230 kV (primary)
PHYSICAL DESCRIPTION OF STATION: The substation will have provisions for two
37.3 MVA transformers, each with four feeder bays. The initial bujld-out will include
one 37.3 MVA transformer and two feeders. Substation dimensions are planned to be
approximately 275’ x 180° and will be located on an approximately 5-acre tract that
DESC is acquiring within an existing 486-acre tract of land.
AREAS IN WHICH FACILITIES ARE TO BE LOCATED IN SOUTH CAROLINA:
COUNTIES: Jasper County
MUNICIPALITIES: Hardeeville

NAMES OF NATIONAL OR STATE PARKS OR FORESTS DIRECTLY AFFECTED
OR THE NEAREST FACILITY:  None are directly affected.

MAJOR WATERWAYS: N/A
MAJOR HIGHWAYS: Near U.S. Highway 17

3. Need and Necessity. DESC Transmission Planning studies indicate that continued
residential, commercial and industrial development in Jasper County, including multiple
large customer load requests in southern Jasper County near the location of the planned
Riverport Substation, will soon exceed the electrical load service capabilities of the
distribution and transmission system in the area unless upgrades are made. The proposed
Lines and Substation will initially serve approximately 9 megavolt-amperes (MVA) of load,
consisting of 6.5 MVA of new load and 2.5 MVA of existing load shifted from the
Hardeeville Substation. Failure to add the Lines and Substation will result in the inability to

distribute electricity to customers or provide the capacity necessary for the high contingency



loading in the area. The new facilities will provide the additional electrical capacity needed
to serve the existing and future load demands reliably. The addition of the Lines and
Substation and the associated facilities are essential to the operational integrity of DESC’s
electrical transmission system and are necessary to ensure that DESC remains in compliance
with North American Electric Reliability Corporation Transmission Planning Standards and
the Company’s own Long Range Planning Criteria.

- Environmental and Cultural Resources Assessment. Attached hereto and made a part
hereof as Exhibit A is the “Transmission Line Siting and Environmental Report for the Jasper
— Okatie 230 kV #2 and the Okatie — Riverport 230 kV and Associated Facilities,” dated
February 2023 and prepared by the Facilities Planning & Siting Division of Pike
Engineering, LLC. Based on the report, the proposed Lines and Substation and associated
facilities will have no significant adverse impacts on land use, soils, wetland/streams, flood
zones, wildlife, protected species, cultural resources, visual resources, population centers,
environmental justice or aviation. §¢e Exhibit A. Given the probable absence of significant
impacts of the proposed Lines and associated facilities, the impact of the proposed Lines and
associated facilities upon the environment is justified.

. Conformance with State and Local Law. The Lines will conform to all applicable state
and local laws and regulations issued thereunder, including any allowable variance
provisions therein.

. Proof of Service. Pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. § 58-33-120(2), Exhibit B, attached hereto
and made a part hereof, is proof of service of a copy of this Application on the South
Carolina Office of Regulatory Staff, the chief executive officer of each municipality and head

of each state and local government agency, charged with the duty of protecting the



environment or of planning land use, in the area in the county in which any portion of the
transmission lines is to be located.

7. Public Notice.  Pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. § 58-33-120(3), Exhibit C, attached hereto
and made a part hereof, is the public notice given to persons residing in the municipalities
entitled to receive notice by publication of a summary of the Application, the date on or
about which it is to be filed, and the newspaper of general circulation in which such notice
was published. This notice served substantially to inform such persons of the filing of this
Application. An affidavit of publication from the newspaper identified is attached as Exhibit
D.

8. Correspondence or Communications. The name, title, address and telephone number of

the persons to whom correspondence or communications relating to the Application should

be addressed are as follows:

K. Chad Burgess, Esquire Matthew W. Gissendanner, Esquire
Managing Counsel Senior Counsel

Dominion Energy Services, Inc. Dominion Energy Services, Inc.

Mail Code C222 Mail Code C222

220 Operation Way 220 Operation Way

Cayce, South Carolina 29033 Cayce, South Carolina 29033

Telephone: 803-217-8141 Telephone: 803-217-5359
kenneth.burgess@dominionenergy.com matthew.gissendanner@dominionenergy.com

WHEREFORE, DESC respectfully requests that the Commission (i) issue a Certificate of
Environmental Compatibility and Public Convenience and Necessity for the Lines described

herein and (ii) order such other, further or different relief as may be justified.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]



Cayce, South Carolina
March 31, 2023

Respectfully submitted,

Mettos W Do fns

K. Chad Burgess, Esquire

Matthew W. Gissendanner, Esquire

Mail Code C222

220 Operation Way

Cayce, South Carolina 29033

Telephone: 803-217-8141 (Burgess)
Telephone: 803-217-5359 (Gissendanner)
kenneth.burgess@dominionenergy.com
matthew.gissendanner@dominionenergy.com

Attorneys for Applicant
Dominion Energy South Carolina, Inc.
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PROOF OF SERVICE

This is to certify that I, Karen M. Scruggs, have this day caused to be served on the
parties as indicated below one (1) copy of the Application to the Public Service Commission of
South Carolina by the Dominion Energy South Carolina, Inc. for a Certificate of Environmental
Compatibility and Public Convenience & Necessity and a Notice of Filing pursuant to 8.C. Code

Ann. § 58-33-120(2) (2015) as follows:

Yia U.S. Mail

Dr. Edward Simmer, Director

8.C. Dep’t of Health & Envt’l Control
2600 Bull Street

Columbia, SC 29201

Via U,S. Mail

Christopher M. Huber, Esquire
8.C. Office of Regulatory Staff
1401 Main Street, Suite 900
Columbiga, SC 29201

4]
Duane Parrish, Director
8.C. Dep’t of Parks, Recreation, & Tourism
1205 Pendleton Street
Columbia, SC 29201

Via U.S. Mail
W. Eric Emerson, Director

S.C. Dep’t of Archives & History
8301 Parklane Road
Columbia, SC 29223

Y . Mai

The Honorable L. Martin Sauls, IV
Chairman, Jasper County Council
358 Third Avenue

Ridgeland, SC 29936

Yia U.S. Mail

Lisa Wagner, Director

Jasper County Planning & Building Dep’t
P.0Q. Box 1659

Ridgeland, SC 29936

Via U.S.

Nanette S, Bdwards, Executive Director
S.C. Office of Regulatory Staff

1401 Main Street, Suite 900

Columbia, SC 29201

Yia U.S. Mail

Robert H. Boyles, Jr., Executive Director
8.C. Dep’t of Natural Resources

Post Office Box 167

Columbia, SC 29202

Via U8, Mail

Christy Hall, Secretary

S.C. Dep’t of Transportation
955 Park Street

Columbia, SC 29201

Yia U.S. Mail

Adam King, Director

S.C. Inst. of Archacology & Anthropology
1321 Pendleton Street

Columbia, SC 29208

Via U,S. Mail

Andrew P. Fulghum

Jasper County Administrator
P,0. Box 1149

Ridgeland, SC 29936

Yia Mail
The Honorable Harry Williams

Mayor, City of Hardeeville
P.O. Box 609
Hardeeville, SC 29927

-



Via U.S. Mail

Michael J. Cyzmbor

City Manager, City of Hardeeville
P.O. Box 609

Hardeeville, SC 29927

SW to before me this
;7 day of March, 2023

i

My Commission Expires: M‘_QMQ‘/

Exhibit B
Page 2 of 2

Via U.S, Mail

Brana Snowden, Planning Director
Hardeeville Planning and Development Dep’t
P.O. Box 609

Hardeeville, SC 29927




Exhibit C'

PUBLIC NOT.

Dominion Energy South Carolina, Inc. (“Dominion Energy South Carolina”) is making
Application to the Public Service Commission of South Carolina on or about March 31, 2023, for
a Certificate of Environmental Compatibility and Public Convenience and Necessity for the
construction and operation of the Jasper — Okatie 230 ¥V Line No. 2, the Okatie ~ Riverport 230
kV Line, the Riverport 230 kV Substation, and associated facilities. These new 230 kV
transmission lines and associated fecilities are critical to the operational integrity of Dominion
Energy South Carolina’s system and needed to ensure that Dominion Energy South Carolina
remains in compliance with North American Electric Reliability Corporation (“NERC™)
Transmission Planning Standards and the Company’s own Long Range Planning Criteria. These
facilities will provide the additional electrical capacity needed to serve reliably the existing and
future load demands in the Jasper County area. This Application is in accordance with the Code
of Laws of South Carolina 1976, Chapter 33, Title 58, as amended, entitled the “Utility Facility
Siting and Environmental Protection Act.”

Copies of the Application will be available for public review at the following location:

Public Service Commission of South Carolina
Clerk’s Office

101 Executive Center Drive

Columbia, South Carolina 29210

Any person wishing to comment on the Application or obtain additional information with
regard thereto should contact in writing the Public Service Commission of South Carolina, 101
Executive Center Drive, Suite 100, Columbia, South Carolina 29210, with a copy to Matthew W,
Gissendanner, Dominion Energy Services, Inc., MC C222, 220 Operation Way, Cayce, South
Carolina 29033,

WS NOTICE WAS PUBL DATE PUBLISHED
Bluffton Today/Jasper County Sun Times March 8, 2023

Hilton Head Island Packet/Beaufort Gazette March 8, 2023

g



Exhibit D

“ Page 1 of 2
LOCALIQ
The Augusta Chronicle PO Box 631697 Cincinnati, OH 45263-1697
Athens Banner-Herald
Savannah Moming News
PUBLIC NOTICE
F OF LICATI

Deminion Energy South Caroling, Inc. (*Dominlon Energy
South Caroling®) Is moking Application to the Public Service

Lacey Breit Commission of South Caroling on or abéut March 11, 2013, for

Laccy Breit a Certificate of Environmental Compatibility ond Pubilic
. Convenlence and Necessity for the construction and operation

South Carolina Newspaper Network of the Jasper - Olatie 230 kV Line No. 2, the Okatie - River-

106 Qutlet Pointe BLVD part 230 kV Line, the Riverport 230 kV Substation, and assocl-

N ated tocllitles. These rew 230 kV Sransmission lines and asso-

Columbia SC 29210-5669 clated facilities are crificol 1o the operational Integrily of

Dominion Energy South Carolina's system and needed to
SompNance with North American Bieciric Rellobii Corpe,
compliance wi merican ric Rel rpo-
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA, COUNTY OF BEAUFORT & ration {("NERC") Tranamission Planning $tandards ond the
JASPER Company’s own Long Rangs Plamsiing Criterio. These focill-
fies will provide the additionot electrical capacily needed to
serve raliobly the existing and future lood demands in the

The Biufiton Today/Jasper County Sun Times, 8 newspaper Jospar County area. This Application Is in accordence with
the Code of Laws of South Caroling 1926, Chapter 33, Title 38,
published and of general circulation in Beaufort County/Jasper o3 beranded, en'ﬁnu the "Gtilty Fociilty Shing and Enviren

County; and personal knowledge of the facts herein state and that mental Protection A
the notice hereto annsxed was Published in said newspapers in
the Issues dated or by publication on the newspaper's wabshte, if g ,:,'.J:',fn:’hc""d“,:nb“ will be avalichle for public

authorized, on:
Public Service Commission of Sovth Ceroline
Clark's Offics

03/08/2023 101 Executive Center Drive

Columbia, South Carolina 29210
and that the fees charged are legal. Ishi nt on the Applicati obtai
Sworn to and subscribed before on 03/08/2023 S ionGL |87 TIOTION Wilh repurd tharate Shack contanr

writing the Pubiic Service Commlsslon of South Coroling, 101
Exacutive Center Drlvo. Sulte m. Columhlu. South Carelina
2910, with a cooy 1o Matthew W. Glssendonner, Dominlon
Enorgy Services, Inc.. MC 222, 320 Operation Way, Caoyce,
South Carclina 29033,

, County of Brown
p-2L 56

My commisior expires

Publication Cost: $50.92

Order No: 8539249 # of Copies:
Customer No: 865697 1
PO#:

THIS IS NOT AN INVOICE!

Page 1of 1




FIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION

-------------------------------------------------------------------

identification Order PO Amout | Cos | Depth
Print Legal AGHPLOT3610 - IPLOM3S B8O Hax 1 fl
Attention: Ms. Lacey Breit STATEOF )

SOUTHCAROLINA ) AFFIDAVTY
COUNTY OF BEAUFORT )

L L E e L bl

1, Tara Pennington, makes oath that the
advertisment, was published in The Island
Packet and The Beaufort Gazette, a
newspaper published in Beaufort County,
State and County aforesaid, in the issue(s) of

1insertion(s) published om:
0310823

B A -

e

TaraPennington

Sworn to and subscribed before me this 8th day
of March in the year of 2083

Stephanie Hadther
oy PRrRBTor e sate o e, resdng i
Coumv

,,5-‘;3?3'!'%:;«1 STEPHANE HATCHER
i Myoay 0¥ 13350408
%ms% Expires Jonuary 14, 2026
Bxtra chacge for lost or dupliate aifideds
! Legl donument pleasedo not destrod
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Date: April 05, 2023
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City of Hardeeville and Neighboring Communities

The City of Hardeeville and our
neighboring communities continue to |
grow and develop. With this growth,
comes the increase in the region’s
population, additional needs, and
governmental services. As a result, it
becomes the responsibility of the city
and each of the counties, in which it
resides in, to improve the socio-
economic opportunities for residents
and visitors alike.

The further continuation in advancing the city and region involves the responsibility
of each jurisdiction to work together, providing opportunity for quality high paying
jobs in efforts to advance the city and region’s overall goal of improving the quality
of life for all residents. To meet this goal, the City of Hardeeville and Jasper County
must work together to find dependable solutions that proactively improve the
opportunity of recruiting new businesses, the retention of local companies and the
expansion of existing industries in order to increase quality employment
opportunities for our citizens. One specific solution is a partnership between the city
and the county is to strengthen its availability of skilled trade workforce.

Problem

As the region continues to grow and develop, opportunities will be available for the
local economy to diversify through the growth, development and expansion of new
and existing industries. As a result, these industries will need various resources
including skilled trade professionals who have the necessary certifications, licensure,
training and expertise to weld, operate a forklift, drive a commercial truck, install
HVAC systems or provide other specific trade skills as needed. Furthermore, the
region has a large underemployed workforce who are working daily in the hospitality
and food & beverage industries making $20,000 to $30,000 annual salaries.



Possible Solution

As the City of Hardeeville continues to work in preparation for new industry, they

are helping to train additional skilled trade workforce, while improving the quality
of life for existing underemployed or unemployed residents residing in Jasper and
Beaufort County through the City of Hardeeville’s Workforce Training Program

In partnership with Palmetto Training, the city’s program consists of two tracks, a
10-week Welding, OSHA, and Forklift certification program or a 5-week CDL-A
licensing program. The welding program includes opportunity to obtain various
NCCER Welding Certifications. The city transformed portions of its Public Works
Facility into the Workforce Training Center by purchasing and installing the
necessary welding equipment, grinders, and saws, renovating classroom space,
and made necessary improvements in electrical, internet and security services for
the Center. With the help of the city and a continual financial investments of more
than $500,000, the ongoing workforce training program has graduated more than
150 students in both programs since 2020 at no cost to the student. As a result of
this program, a combination of men and women students who range from 18 to
55 years of age are transforming their lives through opportunity of new jobs
paying $40,000 and higher per year. A partnership with Jasper County could
significantly improve the number of participants graduating the programs
annually.

Potential Benefits of a Partnership

On a larger scale, the partnership will help to advance the region’s quality of life
and as a collective unit will allow the partners to work through regionalized
solutions that emphasizes investment in workforce training along with addressing
the needs of new and existing industries in the region.

On a local level Jasper County will partner with the City of Hardeeville in efforts to
fund at least 150 new program participants across a period of 3 years with 10 new
program participants being funded through investments contributed by Jasper
County each of the 3 years for a total of 30 trained residents in the 3-year
partnership period. Annual contribution for the entirety of tuition of 10
participants is calculated at 55,900 per student or $59,000 per year and $177,000
for the 3-year period. These funds would be utilized to train Jasper County
residents who reside out of the city and the city can work with training partners to
establish a program tailored for Jasper County.



Partnership Proposal

Jasper County will partner with the City of Hardeeville for a period of 3 years in
an effort to fully fund 150 new workforce training participants as part of the
City of Hardeeville’s Workforce Training Program. Collectively, we will work to
improve the quality of life for our residents, as we work to serve those people
who feel as they don’t have a chance to make it in the real world and this
program gives them that last chance opportunity to change their lives.

* 3-year partnership, where Jasper County will fully fund 10 new
workforce training participants from Jasper County annually at a cost
of $59,000 per year.

* Jasper County will assist the City of Hardeeville with the advertising of
the program to make Jasper County residents more aware of the
workforce training opportunity including placing the information on
their website and social media outlets.

* City of Hardeeville will oversee the administration of the program,
including making available the applications electronically across the
city’s website, will provide the space and equipment for successful
implementation of the workforce training program, and will be the
responsible party for all program oversight and coordination of the
program including the related costs of running the program beyond
the tuition expenses associated with the 10 participants.

Conclusion

The City of Hardeeville is excited about the partnering opportunities with Jasper
County. The City realizes that continuous growth and development in and
around the City will afford opportunities to expand and diversify local
economies and enhance local and regional economic development through the
establishment, incubation and acceleration of new and existing industries while
working to improve the quality of life for all residents.



Agreement

By signing below, Jasper County and the City of Hardeeville agrees to the
terms of this proposal and Jasper County will enter a contractual agreement
(Intergovernmental Agreement) with City of Hardeeville for partnership
services for a period of three (3) years.

Jasper County

Signature Print Name, Title Date

City of Hardeeuville

Signature Print Name, Title Date



A

Neil Parsons
m

From: Neil Parsons

Sent: Tuesday, March 14, 2023 10:21 AM

To: Michael Czymbor

Subject: City of Hardeeville Regional Workforce Training Program
Attachments: Welding Program.pdf

Hope you are doing well. | wanted to provide a white paper on the regional workforce training program in which the City
provides and an opportunity for City-County partnerships.

The City utilized the initial grant money of $350,000 to modify a portion of the Public Works facility in efforts to offer the
city’s workforce program. Initial investments also included new equipment consisting of 10 new Lincoln welding
machines and 10 welding booths along with various larger equipment including a jet ban saw, jet drill Press, bender,
angle grinder, Scotchman shear, computer equipment, new security. Additionally, the remainder amount of money was
set aside for tuition assistance for interesting applicant with the initial expectation of funding 30 applicants.

However, the popularity and success of the program quickly exceeded all expectations. The City was able to use its initial
grant funding, money through the ARPA grant and general funds along with funding through state and local partnerships
to successfully graduate more than 150 locat participants in both the welding, forklift, and OSHA 10- hour program and
COL program tuition free with approximately 80+ graduates to dates. The City has received through its administrative
process 225 applications for both programs with 73% of them coming from Jasper County and 22% from Beaufort
County. The City has invested near $300,000 just in tuition alone for 45 local participants who have graduated from the
program with 64% of graduating participants paid by the City from Jasper County and 28.8% of graduating participants
paid by the City from Beaufort County. The remainder of the graduates have received funding from the Technical College
of the Low Country, Vocational Rehab or WOIA or other sources.

Both programs have had near 100% graduation rate and program graduates have been successful in finding new careers
from Savannah to Charleston. The graduates consist of a large diversity of men and women ranging from 18 years old to
S0 years old mostly comprised of Beaufort County and Jasper County Residents. Most of Hardeeville and the
surrounding region have been dominated by careers in food and beverage with annual salaries of $20,000 to $40,000
and with these new jobs salaries now range from $40,000 to $60,000 a year with potential to be even more.

The demand for these programs has continued to grow with new applicants applying daily. Additionally, Paimetto
Training has the expertise to offer additional training opportunities that include CNC machining and several other
necessary modalities that can be associated with construction, logistics, fabrication etc.

To help aid this process, the city established its own 501¢3 nonprofit, the Hardeeville Community Transformation
Foundation {HCTF) to help maximize opportunity to obtain additional funding to support the workforce training
program’s growth and development.

This program would serve as a great opportunity for the City of Hardeeville to partner with both Beaufort and Jasper
County in effort to fund even more applicants in efforts to improve the quality of life for our residents. We are working
to serve those people who feel as they don’t have a chance to make it in the real world and this program gives them that
last chance opportunity to change their lives.

We would like to schedule a meeting to discuss further.
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City of Hardeeville Career Advancement and Workforce Training Program

Problem Assessment

With the current growth of the City and its close location to the Port of Savannah, the
third busiest port in the nation, City officials and administration arc forecasting the availability of
several new jobs coming to the area that are accompanying new industrial opportunities such as
manufacturing, logistics, shipping, warehouse and storage and industrial construction. These new
employment opportunities will require trained skilled workforce. In a proactive approach to build
a qualifying labor force to fill these much-needed jobs, the City has utilized a grant totaling
$350,000 awarded by EJF Philanthropies in the fall of 2019 to develop and run a new regional
workforce training program that is free for participants and services the City of Hardeeville and
its neighboring municipalities such as City of Savannah, GA and Hilton Head, SC. The program
focuses on improving opportunities for residents in Jasper, Beaufort, Hampton, and Colleton

Counties here in the Lowcountry of South Carolina and neighboring communities in Georgia.

Hardeeville continues to be one of the fastest growing municipalities in the state ranking
as the 4th largest in square miles, but still represents some of the poorest and more diverse
populations here in the Lowcountry. According to the US Census 2019 estimates, the City has a
median household income of approximately $68,000 and per capita income of approximately
$41,000. These income numbers have somewhat been skewed in recent years based on the recent
growth of the 55+ retirement communities in the City. With this growth, City officials are

working to bring various industrial opportunities in and around the City. These opportunities are

City of Hardeeville
Hardeeville, SC
hardeevillesc.gov
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primarily located south of the City along US |7 south toward Savannah, including larger locating
larger industrial tracts including the Hardeeville Commerce Park, Riverport, Sherwood Tract,

and the City of Savannah

With patterns of new opportunities, an increasing population and interest in the
availability of land influencing the City, Hardeeville is now experiencing a transformative period
as it continues to grow and develop. As a result, the City is focusing on opportunities that helps
strengthen the community, drive the economy, build relationships, and provide opportunities that
will improve the quality of life for the City and its neighboring communities. While the City
waits for the paralleling growth opportunities and coupled with the availability of new jobs, the
City continues devoting public resources to further develop underutilized land and market the
opportunities in attracting new businesses. The availability of this land, the increasing growth of
the Port of Savannah and a partnership with a proactive City government have combined to
create a "building boom" for the City much like the City of Charleston, SC for industrial,

commercial, and residential opportunities.

The primary goal of the City is to link this various level of property development with
efforts of attracting quality industries with a purpose of providing opportunities to service the
higher percentages of unemployed or underemployed residents of the City and neighboring
communities. By bringing new jobs, the City will help to boost economy and improve the quality

of life for the City by helping to increase family-supporting wages and reduces work commute

City of Hardeeville
Hardeeville, SC
hardeevillesc.gov
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times. The City is already achieving this goal through the establishment, implementation and

administration of the City of Hardeeville Career Advancement and Workforce Training Program.

The new program consists of two tracks, a 10-week Welding, OSHA, and Forklift
certification program or a 5-week CDL-A licensing program. The welding program includes a
NCCER Welding Certification, where students learn different cutting types, including Oxyfuel,
Plasma Arc, Pulse MIG, in efforts to pass their certification exams. The City transformed
portions of its Public Works Facility into the new Workforce Training Center by purchasing and
installing the necessary welding equipment, grinders, and saws, renovating classroom space, and
made necessary improvements in electrical, internet and security services for the Center. The
ongoing program has graduated twenty students from the welding course and five students from
the CDL program, the City continues to work with them in efforts of finding new higher paying

jobs.

The challenge for the City is with the availability of new jobs comes a need for trained

skilled-workforce and City decided to find a solution to the problem.

The City understands that as it grows, and the continued success of the Port of Savannah
would attract interest of various developers in and around the City for use of its available land.
With this interest, the City wants to work with these developers to attract quality businesses that
provide higher paying jobs in efforts to improve the quality of life for its residents. In order to be
prepared for these opportunities, the City wants to ensure that the pcople are prepared for these

skilled jobs and ensure that these jobs enable them to move from poverty. In efforts to achieve

City of Hardeeville
Hardeeville, SC
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this, the City developed a planning process to create a pipeline of skilled workers to meet the
needs of its ever-changing economy resulting from this growth. The City recognizes that the
Workforce Training Program is different and somewhat of a challenge beyond it core mission.
City leadership utilized staff expertise in implementing a strategy and processes to slowly

introduce the program and make it strive.

Hardeeville is in a transformative period as it continues to develop. As a result, the City
focuses on opportunities that helps strengthen the community, drive the economy, build
relationships, and provide opportunities that will improve the quality of life for the City. The
City has been continuously devoting public resources to develop underutilized land throughout
the City. The availability of land and increasing growth of the Port of Savannah along with
partnering with a proactive City government have combined to create a "building boom" for the
City much like the City of Charleston. The primary goal of the City is to link this property
development with efforts of attracting quality industries with a purpose of providing un- or
underemployed people opportunities to fill jobs associated with manufacturing, logistics and
transportation that increases family-supporting wages and reduces work commute times. The

City is meeting this goal through the Workforce Training Program.

Program Implementation and Costs

The City was awarded a grant totaling $350,000 awarded by EJF Philanthropies to help
modify the Public Works facility, purchase 10 welding machines, install 10 welding booths, and

purchase the related high-priced tools and equipment to not only run the welding program, but

City of Hardeeville
Hardeeville, SC
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also to purchase the necessary classroom cquipment and furniture for the lecture sessions of the
both welding program, forklift and OSHA training and the CDL-A program. The remainder of
the funds have been used to provide a tuition free assistance to each of the program participants,
The City contracted with Palmetto Training to provide both courses at a cost of $5,900, this fee
included the necessary equipment and materials to become certified in either of the programs.
The funds were budgeted to provide the tuition free assistance program up to 30 participants with

the opportunity to fund additional participants as additional funding was secured.

The primary partners that are responsible for the success of the City's Workforce
Training Program are the City, Palmetto Training Inc., Southern Carolina Alliance and EJF
Philanthropies. Through the relationship with North Signal Capital and EJF Capital, who are
developing a 510-acre industrial complex at the RiverPort Park Commerce Park, EJF
Philanthropies granted the City $350,000 to develop and implement a Workforce Training
Program here in the City. Through relationships with SCA, the City was able to join forces with
Palmetto Training Inc., a regional training company who is providing workforce training
programs from Charleston to Walterboro. With more than 30 years of experience training
workforce in various skillsets like welding, machining, CDL along with assisting with job
placement, made them essential to the success of the program. The City provides space, in-kind
contributions and administers the program while SCA helps market the program to new and

existing industries.
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With an estimated population at 8,500 people, the City is a diverse community with
approximately 30% of its population being African American or Hispanic/Latino and a total
population of approximately 50% within 16 and 65 years of age that make up the workforce for
the City. The City’s unemployment rate is hovering around 3% and as the City and region
continues growing, it has a labor force participation rate (55%) lower than national average
(63%) indicating a potential surplus of workers to fill jobs. Currently the workforce is
commuting 30 minutes up to 1- hour for jobs in the food & beverage industry and retail sales that
pays on the average $25,000 per year. With the forecasted jobs in the City’s industrial growth
arca, City and regional workforce have opportunity for jobs in manufacturing, logistics,
transportation, & warchousing. Jobs that are expected to pay salaries in ranges from $40,000 to

$75,000 per year, a significant increase from the current average salaries.
Tangible Results of the Program

The Workforce Training Program has been more successful during its short term of operations
than what was originally envisioned. The City was unsure of the public's interest or the success
of the program during early stages of planning and placed very achievable and conservative
goals for the program. Goals that have been quickly achieved through program interest,
participation, program completion and job placement. The program has provided opportunities to
further train and educate 150 under employed or unemployed men and women of the region and
has successfully helped them to seek certification in Welding or CDL and most importantly, it

has helped them to obtain higher paying jobs
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With the initial funding for the program limited, the City have utilized partnerships with
various regional nonprofits, federal and state agencies including the Technical College of
the Lowcountry to maximize additional funding to continue to grow the program and make

affordable to all interested participants in Jasper and Beaufort Counties.
Lessons Learned

The City of Hardeeville is taking advantage of new opportunities in efforts to stay
economically competitive in an ever-changing global market. The City identified challenges of
preparing its workforce in conjunction with new forecasted industrial jobs that are coming to the
City. Even though several entities provide workforce training throughout the state including
technical colleges, state agencies and nonprofits, the solutions in place are not fully capable of
providing training programs that capture the skilled work force components in a manner that are
aligned with industry needs and geared for all the local residents. As a result, the City pursued a
sector-driven approach to meet specific needs for the City. Hardeeville developed a local and
regional workforce program that promotes economic growth and improves quality of life for its
residents. Like Hardeeville, other small cities can pursue partnerships on multiple levels to
advance workforce and economic development that satisfies their workforce demands. By
taking chances outside of their core mission much like Hardeeville, cities can establish new

programs with the goal of creating quality jobs and developing a skilled workforce in efforts of
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preparing themselves to meet the needs of their industries or related job opportunities as they
become available. For instance, Hardeeville developed a Workforce Training Program by
establishing collaborative partnerships and engaging support from educational and training
institutions along with other professional entities who advances workforce development
statewide. Through a unified approach to improve workforce development, the City has

invested in providing targeted education and training programs that provide opportunities for
unemployed and under-skilled workers to be prepared for quality jobs and fill skills gaps for

employers.

City of Hardeeville
Hardeeville, 5C
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OFFICE OF THE JASPER COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR

358 Third Avenue - Courthouse Square - Post Office Box 1149
Ridgeland, South Carolina 29936 - 843.717-3690 - Fax: 843-726-7800

Andrew P. Fulghum
County Administrator

sfulghuny@iaspercountysc.gov

Progress Report
April 4, 2023 - April 17, 2023

1. Affordable Housing Project:
Met with developer and County staff on April 6 re: potential affordable housing
project. Will continue to work on the issue and report to Council when staffed out.

2. Ohi ings:

Telephone conversations with the appraiser, County staff, and SCA staff. Will
provide Council with a copy of the appraisal as soon as it is completed.

3. Consulting, Lobbying, and Grant Writing Services:
Discussions re: status of legislative requests. Ms. Rath is scheduled to provide a
legislative update for the County Council on April 17.

4. Workforce Training:
Received and reviewed proposal from the City of Hardeeville re: request for County
funding for City’s workforce training initiative. Distributed proposal to County
Council in April 17 Administrator’s Report.

S. Various Development Projects:
Attended meeting with County staff, SCA staff, and outside counsel on April 12 to
discuss active economic development projects.

6. Rid d- irport:
Reviewed correspondence from Mr. Richard Dean. Copy follows this report.

7. Other Meectings/Events Attended or Scheduled to Attend:
County Council Annual Retreat on April 5, pre-closing of Marsh Cove Fire Station
on April 11, public hearing for Waste Management landfill expansion permit on
April 12, and the Heritage Golf Tournament on Hilton Head Island on April 14,

Page l of 1



Andrew Fulghum

from:; Richard Dean <richarddean102@gmail.com>

Sent: Friday, April 7, 2023 11:34 AM

To: Barbara Clark

Cc: Marty Sauls; Caroline Garbade; John Kemp; Alvin Adkins; Wanda Simmons; Andrew
Fulghum; David Tedder; Danny Lucas

Subject: Ridgeland Claude Dean Airport Discord

Attachments: Ground Lease - Gopher Hill Hangar.pdf

CAUTION: This emall originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when opening attachments or clicking
links, especially from unknown senders.

Ms. Clark,

We both attended the Jasper County Delegation meeting in Columbia last week (3/29/23) to present our respective
opinions on the circumstances regarding the Ridgeland Claude Dean Airport.

It was clear from your brief comments that you are very angry with the actions of the Ridgeland Aviation Community
Association (RACA), one that even included a gratuitous swipe at Mr. Claude Dean and myself. Let me assure you that {
too am appalled, but from the other side of the issue. The resuit of unjustified actions has generated a firm and

mounting resistance in the regional aviation community against Jasper County, one which will be pursued both into the
courts and the ballot box if necessary.

Respectfully, | think your anger is both irrational and misdirected. RACA would not exist today had the County not
launched an avaricious and covetous assault on the privately owned hangars at the airport. Some member or other of
the County staff apparently originated the idea and concocted a plan to execute it. They apparently believed and
proposed that such a plan was the right course of action and assumed the hangar owners would either be too ignorant

1o see that Jasper County was proposing to confiscate their property or simply believed the hangar owners would be
powerless to fight off such a felonious initiative.

Your staff was wrong.

The County further advanced this seif-serving contention with the faise assertion that the hangars had already been
depreciated over twenty plus years and therefore were of no further value to their owners. The County Staff knew this
argument to be untrue, but they continued to push it to convince you that thelr actions were In fact just and reasonable.

For example, my hangar, the one | helped Mr. Claude Dean build in 1970, is valued by my insurance company at only
$35,000. Demonstrably, its real-world value is much higher. RACA’s hangar owners are all fully aware of these economic
realities. And so is the Jasper County staff.

As late as 2017, County leaders were praising the hangar owners and pilots for their vigor and leadership in building
Ridgeland Airport into the busiest airport (by runway length) in the state. But in 2019, staff brought forth Ordinance 19-
14 (which we now know to have been unlawful) containing leases that upon signing, transferred ownership of each to

the County with no compensation in return. That's one hell of a way to thank the people who were instrumental in
building the taxpayer’s airport.

The hangar owners asked the County to remove this egregious and confiscatory wording from the new lease, but the
County declined. Thus, the birth of RACA to which you are apparently so opposed.

In your partial defense, | can’t help but wonder if staff told Council about the change in lease terms before having you
voteon it.



Staff had to know that such unfair and dishonorable terms would anger hangar owners and local pilots. Did they push
forward anyway thinking the law was on the side of the landlord and the hangar owners would be powerless to fight off
this open theft of thelr property?

I think the oath sworn by all Council members demands that they place these hard questions before the County
Staff. Thus, task:

Was it RACAs fauit that the County staff didn’t know who owned the original 76 acres of airport property? That it was

not County property? Who failed to conduct appropriate due diligence before applying for twenty plus million dollars of
federal and state grant monies?

Was it RACAs fault that the staff didn’t know that the County did not have the authority to devolve the aeronautics
commission into the county? Or did they know it but chaose to get your compliance on an unlawful ordinance?

Is it RACAs fault that the County unlawfully evicted the airport’s privately owned fuel vendor, forcing him out of business
and reducing fuel avallability at the airport by more than 75 percent? Is it RACAs fault that this action resulted in a
formal inquiry from the FAA regarding violation of existing and binding FAA Grant Assurances and set the County up for
a pending lawsuit? An informed leadership would have left the fuef vendor in business until the County’s fuel

operations were fully functional, A strategy of lower fuel prices could have then competed him out of business

legally. No laws or FAA rules would have been broken.

Is it RACAs fault that a county staff member made yet another clearly false statement, this time in front of the Jasper

County Delegation stating that he had reviewed at least three previous leases that contained a reversion clause? This
statement was patently false. Please see the attachment for the lease used prior to the unlawful ordinance passed in
2019. Also please note that the development of that lease in 2018 included county staff input and that it contains no
reversion clause.

And finally, is it RACAs fault that the airport manager declared the turf operating area (TOA) to be unsafe for
aeronautical activities even though the County paid Holt Consulting to include a turf operating area in their plans for the
airport expansion? The manager’s contention is further belied by his actions In the last sixty days wherein he directed a
helicopter and a banner towing operation to use the “unsafe for aviation” turf operating area and gave them free access
through the Wrong Road gate that he previously declared must remain locked to all local pilots for security purposes.

So, I'll ask again, who should you or any council member be angry with? Those who led (or misled) you into this
predicament or Is it RACA, the pilot group who is making you aware of these staff failures and unlawful actions?

A final note. Just as In the previous eighty plus year history of our airport, there are no bigger supporters of the
Ridgeland {Claude Dean) Airport than its own hangar owners and the regional aviation community. We simply insist that

airport growth and management be done fairly, intelligently, and legally as was done for the years prior to ordinance 19-
14.

Respectfully
Richard L. Dean
Former Airport Manager 2016-2020

Hangar and aircraft owner
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OR  Book 0072 Page 0357 - 0963
Flled for Record in JASPER COUNTY ROD
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) — Fee: $13.00
) LEASE
COUNTY OF JASPER )

This LEASE is made effective as of the 26th day of March , 2018, by and between The
Jasper County Aeronautics Commission, an agency of Jasper County organized and
existing under the laws of the State of South Carolina and having its principal office at
134 Airport Road, City of Ridgeland, County of Jasper, State of South Carolina, herein
referred to as “Lessor”, and Gopher Hill Hanger LL.C. herein referred to as “Lesses”.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Lessor is the owner of an airport known as The Ridgeland Claude Dean
Airport, hereinafier called “Airport™; and

WHEREAS, Lessee desires to use the facilities of the airport and to maintain a base of
operations at the airport; and

WHEREAS, Lessor is wiling to lease to Lessee a portion of the airport premises
together with such rights and privileges as are sat forth in this Lease;

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the above recitals, the terms and
covenants of this Lease, and other valuable consideration, the receipt of which is
acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

1. USE OF AIRPORT. Lessee is granted the use, in common with others similarly
authorized, of the airport, together with all facilities, equipment, improvements, and
services which have been or may hereafter be provided at or in connection with the
airport from time to time including, but not limited to, the landing field and any
extensians thereof or additions thereto, roadways, runways, aprons, taxiways, sewage

and water facilities, landing lights, beacons, radio aids, and all other conveniences for
flying, landings, and takeoffs.

2. HANGAR AND GROUND SPACE. Lessor grants the exclusive use
of that portion of the airport premises described as follows: Lotmﬁmmm
m_mm_m;e& (100x70) (7.000 SQIFT) together with the hangars and other
constructed improvements currently located on such premisaes, or to build a hangar
suitable for storage of aircraft and aircraft supplies to be constructed and which must be
maintained on the property throughout the term of the Lease. In the event that the
leased property does not have such a building at the commencement of the Lease,
Lessee agrees that such a building will be constructed within twetve (12) months from
the commencement of this Lease, and further, agrees to maintain it for the remainder of
the Lease. The Jasper County Aeronautics Commission shall review and approve the
plans prior to construction. The premises shall be used only for aircraft storage or

1



related business. The premises may not be used for any other purpose without
advance, written permission of the Lessor.

3. RIGHT OF INGRESS AND EGRESS. Lessee shall have at all times the fuli and
free right of ingress to and egress from the premises and facilities referred to in Section
Two of this Lease for Lesses, its employees, customers, passangers, guests, and other
invitees. Such right shall also extend to persons or organizations supplying materials or
fumishing services to Lessee, to include vehicles, machinery, and equipment
reasonably required by such persons or organizations.

4. TERM, RATE AND RENEWAL. The term of this lease is Twenty (20) years at

the rate of $.18 (Fifteen_cents) per square foot of the structure (existing or to be

constru commencing on the 1st day of April, 2018, and ending on the 1* day of

unless terminated at an earlier date for any reason set forth in this lease.

2’ The lease shall be paid in five (5) year increments with the first increment due in its

> entirety at the time this lease is signed and additional increments due immediately upon
the five (5), ten (10), and fifteen (15) year anniversaries of the initial payment. Lessor

has the right to adjust the lease rate at these five (5) year anniversaries to reflect

increases in the consumer price index (CPl) during the previous five (5) year increment
of the lease.

At the expiration of the twenty (20) year lease term, Lessee shall have the right of first
refusal to renew this lease at the new lease rate established by the Lessor. The lease
rate may be Increased to reflect increases in the consumer price index during the term
of this lease. Lessor will give Lessee notice of the new lease rate a minimum of 90
days prior to the expiration of this lease term, and Lessee shall notify Lessor of
Lessee’s intention to renew within 30 days after receiving notice of the new lease rate.

5. RULES AND REGULATIONS.

a. Lessee agrees to observe and obey all laws, regulations and ordinances
of the jurisdictions (federal, state and local) having authority over the premises.

b. Lessee agrees to observe and obey the reasonable rules and regulations
of the Jasper County Aeronautics Commission with respect to use of the premises;
provided, however, such rules and regulations shall be consistent with safety and the
rules, regulations, and orders of the Federal Aviation Administration with respect to
aircraft operation at the Airport; and provided further, that such rules and regulations
shall not be inconsistent with the provision of this Lease or the procedures
prescribed or approved from time to time by the Federal Aviation Administration with
respect to the operation of Lessee’s aircraft at the Alrport.

c. Lessee agrees o be responsible for proper tie down and securing of
aircraft after each usage.



d. Lessee agrees to be responsible for proper securing of facllities and gates
after each use including use by Lessee’s guests and customers.

e. Lessee agrees not to handle, store or utilize any toxic or hazardous
materials on the premises without Lessor’s prior written consent and approval.

f Lessee agrees to be responsible for the mitigation and cleanup of spills of
any toxic or hazardous materfals within the premises or emanating from the
premises. Including any fines that may be levied.

g. Lessee acknowledges responsibliity for any taxes associated with the
structure and contents.

8.  INSURANCE: At all times during the lease term Lessee shall maintain, at its sole
cost, comprahensive broad-form general public liability insurance against claims and
liabllity for personal injury, death, and property damage arising from the use,
occupancy, disuse or condition of the leased areas. The insurance shall be carried by
a company authorized to transact business in the State of South Carolina. In addition,
the following conditions shall be met:

a. The insurance provided pursuant to this paregraph shall be in an amount
no less than $1,000,000.00 per occurrence and $2,000,000.00 yearly aggregate,
with a deductible not to exceed $5,000.00 per occurence. The insurance policy
shall name both Lessor and Lessee as insured. The Lessee shall furnish to Lessor
by delivery to the Airport Manager certificates of all insurance required throughout
the term of this lease.

7. INDEMNIFICATION OF LESSOR. Lessee agrees to indemnify Lessor against
any and all liabllity for injuries to persons or damage to property caused by Lessee's
negligent use or occupancy of the leased premises; provided, howaever, that Lessee
shall not be liable for any injury, damage, or loss occasioned by the negligence of
Lessor or its agents or employees; and provided further that Lessor shall give to Lessee
prompt and timely notice of any claim made or suit Instituted which in any way directly
or indirectly, contingent or otherwise, affects or might affect Lessee, and Lessee shall
have the right to compromise and defend the sult to the extent of its own interest.

8. TERMINATION. If Lessee falls to make any payment due under this Lease
within thirty (30) days of the date on which such payment is due or shall violate any
other term of this Lease, Lessor, at its option, may terminate this Lease, after giving
notice of the violation to Lessee and Lessee having 30 days to cure the violation, and

take possession of the hangar and Lessee’s personal property as is reasonably
necessary to secure payments of the amounts due and unpaid.



9. SURRENDER OF POSSESSION.

a. On the expiration or other termination of this Lease, Lessee’s rights to use
of the premises, facilities, and services described in this Lease shail cease, and
Lessee shall vacate the premises without unreasonable delay.

b. At the termination or expiration of this Lease, Lessee shall surrender the
leased premises to Lessor in as good condition as when received by Lessee from
Lessor or as thereafier improved, reasonable use and wear excepted. Lessee shall
repair any damage to the premises occasioned by Its use, or by the removal of
Lessee’s trade fixtures, fumishings, and equipment, which repair shall include the
patching and filling of holes and repair of structural damage.

c. Except as otherwise provided in this Lease, all buildings, hangars,
structures, fixtures, improvements, equipment, and other property bought, installed,
erected, or placed by Lessee in, on, or about the airport and premises leased,
including, but not limited to storage tanks, pipes, pumps, wires, poles, machinery,
and air conditioning equipment, shall be deemed to be personal and shall remain the
property of Lessee. Lessee shall have right at any time during the term of this Lease
or any renewal or extension, and for additional period of sixty (60) days after the
expiration or other termination of this Lease, to remove any and all such property
from the airport, subject, howaver, to Lessee’s obligation to repair all damage, if any,
resulting from such removal. Any and all property not removed by Lessee prior to
the expiration of the above-stated sixty (60) day period shall become a part of the
land on which it is located and title to such property shall vest in Lassor.

10. INSPECTION BY LESSOR. Lessor may enter the leased premises at any

reasonable time for inspection or for any purpose necessary or incidental to the
performance of its obligations under this Lease.

11.  ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING. Lessee shall not at any time assign its rights

under this Lease or any part thereof without the Lessor's prior written consent and
approval.

12. SALE OF FIXED STRUCTURES/OPTION TO PURCHASE. If Lessee desires to
sell fixed structures and receives a bona fide offer to purchase, Lessee shall give
Lessor written notice of Lessee’s intention to sell. Such notice shall state the terms and
conditions of the offer. For thirty (30) business days following the giving of such notice,
Lessor shall have the option of purchasing the structure at the same price and under the
same terms as stated in the Lessee’s notice. Lessee acknowledges their responsibility
to provide a copy of this lease document to prospective buyers prior to sale. Lessee
further acknowlodges that sale of such structures shall be documented with the
execution of the approved bill of sale document included herein as appendix A.



13. NOTICES. Notices provided for in this Lease shall be sufficient if in writing and
sent by registered mail, postage prepaid, to:

Lessor: Lessee:
224 Almport Rd

14. GOVERNING LAW. This Lease shall be govemed by, construed, and enforced
in accordance with the laws of the State of South Carolina.

15. SEVERABILITY. Any covenant, condition, or provision of this Lease that is held
to be invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction shall be considered deleted from this
Lease, but such deletion shall in no way affect any other covenant, condition, or
provision of this Lease so long as such deletion does not materially prejudice Lessor or
Lessee in their respective rights and obligations contained in the valid covenants,
conditions, or provisions of this Lease.

16. EFFECY OF LEASE. All covenants, conditions, and provigions in this Lease
shall extend to and bind the legal representatives, successors, and assigns of the
respective parties.

17. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Lease constitutes the entire agreement between
the parties, and any prior understanding or representation of any kind preceding the
date of this Lease shall not be binding on either party except to the extent incorporated
in this Lease.

18. MODIFICATION OF LEASE. Any modification of this Lease or additional

obligation assumed by either party in connection with the Lease shall be binding only if
in writing signed by each party or authorized representative of each party.

{Signature page follows.)



WHEREFORE, the parties, acting through their duly authorized and empowered
representatives have caused to be executed this lease under their hands and seals, the
day and year first above written.

LESSOR:

JASPER COUNTY AERONAUTICS
COMMISSION

By:
Name: 7<s< o L. DEAN
Title: CAhAArRIMAN

[Seal]

) ACKNOWLEDGMENT
COUNTY OF JASPER )

|, the undersigned notary public for the aforesaid State, do hereby certify that the
above named officer of the Lessor, personally appeared before me this day and

acknowledged the dus execution of the foregoing instru
Witness my hand and official seal thise2> “day of 2018,

[SEAL]




LESSEE:

-GophorHlllHanger, LIC =~~~
By: JM.O‘E%’—»
Name: (e Lo
Title: Aaer /mmz
[Seal]
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )
) ACKNOWLEDGMENT
COUNTY OF JASPER )

|, the undersigned notary public for the aforesaid State, do hereby certify that the
above named officer of the Lessor, personally appeared before me this day and
acknowledged the dus exacution of the foregoing instrument.

wmwmmmomdmmuﬁe?,l“dayofm,mw.

[SEAL]
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AGENDA ITEM:
Item #’s 14 - 17
Consent Agenda Items

14. Rose Dobson — Presentation and consideration of bids for up to five (5) 25 ft. containers
and one (1) compactor.

15. Danny Lucas - Consideration of the 3" reading of Ordinance #0-2023-05 to authorize Jasper
County to Enter Into A Memorandum of Understanding/Lease Agreement with Jasper-Ridgeland
Youth Baseball, Inc. (“JRYB") for the use of Athletic Facilities. (1** reading 03.06.2023; 2" reading
04.03.2023)

16: Danny Lucas — Consideration of the recommended CDBG Needs Assessment for 2023,

17. Approval of the minutes of March 6, 2023:



AGENDA ITEM:
Item 14
Consent Agenda Item



Jasper County Engineering Services
Public Works Department

P O. Box 1233 - Ridgeland, South Carolina 29936
Phone (843-726-7740 * FAX (843) 726-7743

Jasper County Council
M. B. Khan Construction Co., Inc.
Jasper County Farmer’s Produce Market Renovations - GMP Package

Meeting Date: [ April 11,2023 '“ =1
Subject and Award of Bid from FleetGenius of NC for 5 Containers and 1 Compactor
Recommendation:

I
|
= : |
Submitted for: Acceptance and authorization for the Award of Bid and Authority to Purchase five (5) i
Roll Off Containers and one (1) Compactor |

Description: Jasper County advertised for Bids for four (4) 25 Yard Open-Top Containers and one
(1) 39 Yard Self Contained Compactor. The County received two (2) bids. The Low Bid being
FleetGenius of NC with $59,736.36. Staff is requesting that we be allowed to use savings in the
equipment purchase funding to allow for the purchase of an additional 25 Yard Open-Top Container.
The low bid of $59,736.36 leaves $15,263.64 in the budget of equipment purchase, I am requesting to
be allowed to $7,362.36 from the Capital Outlay budget line item.

Recommendation: Staff recommends that the County Council authorize the low bid for the Four 25
Yard Open-Top Containers and One 39 Yard Self Contained Compactor and allow the purchase of an
additional 25 Yard Open-Top Container. This recommendation also requests that the Administrator
be approved to sign the Agreement to accept the Bid.

Attachments: Bid Package
**Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me.
Respectfully submitted,

Rose N. Dobson-Elliott, Director of Engineering Services
Jasper County, South Carolina

(843) 726-7740 — Office

(843) 962-2868 - Cell

rdelliott@jaspercountysc.org

Pagelofl
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NOTICE TO BIDDERS

Notice is hereby given that seaied bids will be received for four (4) 25 Yard Open-Top Containers
and one (1) 39 Yard Self Contained Compactor, by Jasper County, South Carolina, until 2:00
p.m., the 4" day April of 2023, at which time all bids received be opened and read sioud in the
Jasper County Council Chambers. To be deemed “received” a bid must be actually received by
Finance Office at the Jasper County Govemment Building, 358 Third Avenue, Poat Office Box
1149, Ridgeland, South Carolina 28936 prior to the time bids are to be opsned. Bids delivered
within the 30-minute period immediately preceding bid opening (as described above) must be
hand-defivered to the Finance Director’s Office in the Jasper County Govemment Bullding. Any
bids detivered after the above time will not be accepted under any circumstances. Any uncertainty
regarding the time a bid Is delivered will be resolved against the Bidder.

Electronic bics will be accepted as well as mailed. To be deemed “recelved" an electronic bid
must be submitted through the County’s Vendor Registry webpage to ensure that it remains
sealed untll the scheduled bid opening date and time. A link to Jasper County’s Vendor Registry
webpage may be found under “What's New”, Bids & Saticitations”, on the County’s website at
www jaspercountysc.gov

77480 or at

Description of Worl;

Jasper County is seeking bids for four (4) 25-yard open-top containers. Containers should be
made of 3/16 thick metal on sides and % thick on floors, with 3/16 x 2 x & malin rails, 4° ground
wheels and 4 x § channe! on 34-inch centers for skie braces and One (1) 39 Yard Se!f Contained

Compactor. The Self-Contained Compactor should contain weather covers, 80% lights and
pressure gauges. All bids should include South Carclina sales tax and delivery fees.

Bld Reguirements:

Each Bidder must be qualified under the provisions of the most current State of South Carclina
Contraetnr'sLieensingLawcodo.Nohidw!nbemmadummmbmw“w
under the provisions of the South Carolina Contractor's Licensing Law. By submitting a bid Bidder

I certifying that it has independently determined that its licensure is adequate to authorize it to
submit the bid.

MBidswlllmmwmpummmkwtao)dayamu\edayoﬂheBldoponlng.The
County of Jasper (Owner) reserves the right to reject any or all bids, including without limitation
the right to reject any or all nonconforming, non-responsive, unbalanced or conditional Bids.
mmomﬂwmwwaMaMMoMuMImepﬂce.ﬁmuwlnm
Work and to negotiate contract terms with the Successful Bidder.

Bidders on this work will be required to comply with the President's Executive Order No. 11246
and Order No. 11376 which prahibit discrimination in employment regarding race, creed, cotor,
sex or national origin; Title Vi of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Davis-Bacon Act, the Anti-
Kickback Act, the Contract Work Houre and Safety Standards Act, and 40 CFR 33.240

The County’s point of contact for this project Dallas Lassitar, who can be reached at (843) 726-
dlassiterRjespercountysc.gov
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FLEETGENIUS™

FleetGenius of NC

1808 Norwood St SW
Lenoir NC 28645
USA

BILLTO

Jasper County
P O Box 1244

Ridgsland SC 29938
USA

SHIP TO

Jasper County
623 Live Oak Drive

Dale Terry at 843-247-2237
Ridgeland SC 28938
USA

Sales Employee: Missi Templeton
Contact Name: Dallas Lasgsiter
Torms: N30

Ship Via:
FOB:

BWE Transport, LLC

QUOTATION

Quote No.:

Date:

Valld Until;
Customer No.:
Customer Ref. No.:
Page No.:

Amended

492685
03102723
0510223
co1568

Page 1 of 3

TOTAL

$67,730.42

Item No. Description

Unit Price

Quantity Total I

8C-39 Self Cont Compactor-39¢cy

(299”L x 96"W x 105"H)
Baker Tan - FNOO8,

Remote Power Unit w/ weather cover

w/ kay lock start, reverse, & e-stop controls in panel
w/ Bft hydraulic hoses

10HP 7 10GPM

Voltage 240 / 3ph

Warning lights 80% & 100%

Pressure gauge on Power Unit

Hold To Run

Hydraulic Connections / Disconnects: Left Side

No Load Option Requires Hold To Run
Standard Drawing No.: SC39-001-S

$ 22,.826.00

1.000 $22,626.00

ROR-25-22(48) (23) Roll Off 28 cuyd Rect.
Baker Tan - FNCO8,

1/4" Floor
7ga Sides w/ 6" break at bottom
4 8x6 ground wheels

Standard Rectangular Specifications:

Understructure Cross Membears - 3" channel on 16" center
2 guasets per cross member

Main Ralils - 2" x 6" tubing 3/16" wall, with solid bull nose
Pull Hook -1 1/2° wx 5 1/2" h x 2 1/2" eye opening

Guide Rollers - 4" dia. x 6" long with recessed grease fitting
Top Cap - 4" x 3" x 11 ga wall tubing

Side Ribs - 3" x §" channel on 38" centers

Hinges - 2 heavy-duty hinges with grease fitting

Canvas Tie Down - Each side, front and door

Paint - Primer inside and outside 2.0 mils, Industrial enamel finish to 2.0

$7.334.00

5.000 $36,67000

Phone: 828-726-3001 Fax: (828) 726-3010 USA: 800-221-4153

theile_: www.flestgenius.com



FleotGenius of NC QUOTATION Amended

1808 Norwood St SW
' ” Lanoir NC 28645 g:l:b No.: ;9312(32 ,

USA ]

Vafid Until: 05/02/23
FLEETGENIUS" Customer No.: C01569
Customer Ref. No.:
Page No.: Page 2 of 3
item No. Description Unit Price Quantity Total

We Appreciate Your Interest In BWE Products, And For This Opportunity To Do Business,

Missi Templeton

Bakers Waste Equipment Inc

BWE South Region Sales Manager
828-448-8371 (celi)

828-726-3001 (main office)
miempleton@bwe-nc.com (email)
www.bwe-nc.com (wabsite)

*Lead Time: Approx (8) Weeks After Receipt Of Order - Subject To Changea At Time Of Order
*Prices Quoted Are Good For 30 Days From The Date Of The Quote
*Sales Tax Will Be Applied Unfess BWE Has A Tax Exempt Certificate On File

"Customer Is Responsible And Liable For Offloading Equipment Upon Delivery Unless Atternate Methods Have Been Arranged
Prior To Delivery

Order Terma and Conditions:

Order Confirmation — quotes are confirmed into orders based on customer verbal or written confirmation.

ALL INFORMATION CONTAINED IN A CONFIRMED QUOTE WILL BE CONSIDERED CORRECT AND ACCURATE AT THE
TIME OF THE ORDER

Purchase Orders are recommended and preferred to confirm an order. The quoted product item, price, quantity, and
specifications are also acknowledged at the time the order is confirmed.

Prices will be subject to change based on any subsequent alteration to quantity, product design or specification, logistics, or
delivery schedule.

*Order Cancellations — cancelled or revised orders if the order is already in production must be approved by BWE and will be
subject to 25% cancelation or change order fee.

*Feas may be higher on custom engineered products.

Payment Terms — method and payment terms are confirmed at time of order. New accounts will be subject to a deposit,
prepayment, and / or COD payment terms until a credit application can be processed for payment term options

Warranty - standard BWE warranty applies to all new products sold. Warranty date begins on the date the product is received
and is only valid if the products have been received, and paid for in full

Shipping Damages — any damages must be noted at the time of delivery to the freight company that delivers the product.
Failure to do so may jecpardize any damage claim to repair, return, or replace the damaged product. Customer is responsible
for offloading equipment, and is liable for any damages incurred during offloading

*Retumn Policy — products must have return authorization from BWE prior to them being returned. Standard items retumed are
subject to a 25% restocking fee. Fees may be higher or return authorization declinded if the products are custom engineared,
*BWE reserves the sole right to waive any return or restocking fees.

Phone: 828-728-3001 Fax: (828) 726-3010 USA: 800-221-4153 Websita: www.fleetgenius.com



FleetGenius of NC

QUOTATION Amended
r 1808 Norwood St SW
. Quote No.: 49285
[ | ' besrxnr NC 28845 Ote: A .
Valid Until; 05/02/23
FLEETGENIUS™ Customer No.: C01569
Customar Ref. No.:
Page No.: Page 3 of 3
item No. Description Unit Price Quantity Total 1

PINNACLE COMPACTOR DISCLAIMER;

***SITE READINESS***

Customer is responsible for the removal of any existing equipment prior to installation new equipment
Customer will provide a clean, level, concrete pad to spec for compactor installations

Customer is responsible for supplying the electric service disconnect in tine of sight of the compactor
Electrical disconnect box must be ready (“hot") w/ the proper fuse prior to compactor installation
Upon installation, compactors will be leveled, secured to the pad, and tested

Remote power units will be located in close proximity to the compactor and electric disconnect
Power units are free standing and not bolted to the pad unless specified

***Compactors ordered without febricated load options are subject to the 84" Rule (ANS| 245 2)***

*If the 84" Rule is not met, then the compactor will ba equipped w/ “Hold To Run Controls”

*In lieu of Hold To Run, an "Auto Start Key Switch" can be offered providing the customer assumes responsibility for
compliance with the 84" Ruls

*Disclaimer forms for sign off, and assuming responsibility to the 84™ Rule are available upon request

***IF BWE PINNACLE IS DELIVERING AND / OR INSTALLING, THE CUSTOMER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR OFFLOADING AND
PLACEMENT OF EQUIPMENT UPON DELIVERY UNLESS PRIOR ARRANGEMENTS HAVE BEEN MADE***

***All warranty claims on parts and components are subject to the damaged/defective part being retumed to BWE / Pinnacle for
inspection*™*

Upon receipt of the damaged/defective part, BWE / Pinnacle will diagnose the failure and process the warranty claim
accordingly.

If the part is deemed defactive, then the replacement part will be provided at no charge

If the part is found to be abused or physically damaged due to misuse, then the replacement part will be invoiced

All parts and components are subject to the BWE / Pinnacle 1 year warranty from date of purchase

Subtotal $ 56,206.00
Discount
Shipping $284200
‘Remarks: SC-39 & (4) ROR-25-22 Tax $ 5,592 42
2 TL Freight Total $ 67,730.42

Lead Times Approx 8 Weeks

Phone: 828-728-3001 Website: www.fleetgenius.com

Fax (828} 726-3010 USA: 800-221-4153



. ‘ FleetGenius of NC QUOTATION Original

1808 Norwood St 8W
™ Lencir NC 28646 Quote No.: 48265
J USA Date; m
Vald Until: 04n2/23
FLEETGENIUS"” Customer No.: Co1568
Customer Ref. No.:
Page No.: Page 1 of 3
BILLTO SHIPTO TOTAL
0 cm“ 823 I.I:o Oakgﬂvo
POBox1
Dals Torry at 843-247-2237 $ 59-736"36
Ridgeland SC 20038 Ridgeland SC 26938
USA USA
Sales Employes: Missi Templeton
Contact Mame:  Dallas Lassiter Ship Via: BWE Transport, LLC
Terms: N30 FOR:
item No. Description Unit Price Total
8C-39 Seif Cont Compactor-39cy $ 22,626.00 1.000 $22,62600
(289”L x 98"W x 105"°H)
Baker Tan - FNOOS,

Remote Power Unit w/ westher cover
w/ key lock start, reversa, & e-stop controls in panel
w/ 8t hydraulic hoses

10HP 7 10GPM

Voltage 240 / 3ph

Warning lights 80% & 100%
Pressure gauge on Power Unit
Hold To Run

Hydraulic Connections / Disconnects: Left Side

No Losd Option Requires Hold To Run
Standard Drawing No.: £C38-001-8

ROR-25-22(48) (23) Roll Off 26 cu yd Rect. $7.334.00 4.000 $ 29,336.00
Beker Tan - FNOOE,

174" Floor
7ga Sides w/ 6" break at bottom
4 B8 ground wheels

Standard Rectanguier Specifications:
Undarstructure Cross Members - 3" channel on 18* center
2 gussets per cross member

Main Ralls - 2° x 6" tubing 3/16" wall, with solid bull nose
Pull Hook - 1 1/2° wx 5§ 1/2° h x 2 1/2" eye opening

Guide Rollers - 4° dia. x 8" long with recessed grease filting
Top Cap - 4" x 3" x 11 ga wall tubing

Side Ribs - 3" x 5" channel on 38° centers

Hinges - 2 heavy-duty hinges with greass fitting

Canvas Tie Down - Each side, front and door

Paint - Primer inside and outside 2.0 mils, Industrial enamel finish to 2.0

Phone: 826-726-3001 Fax (828)726-3010 USA: 800-2214183 Wabsite: www.flestgenius.com




' FleetGenius of NC QUOTATION

Original
1808 Norwood St SW
l ) Lenoir NC 28645 gx-m.: 40265
J USA 2 03/02/23
Valid Until: 04/02/23
PLEBTGENIUS" Customer No.: C01589
Customer Ref. No.:
Page No.: Page 2 of 3
item No. Description Unit Price Quantity Total
We Appreciate Your Interest in BWE Products, And For This Opportunity To Do Business,
Missi Templeton
Bakers Waste Equipment inc
BWE South Region Sales Manager
828-448-8371 (cell)

§28-726-3001 (maln office)

miempleton@bwe-nc.com (email)
www.bwe-nc.com (website)

*Lead Time: Apprax (6) Weeks After Recaipt Of Order - Subject To Change At Time Of Order
*Prices Quoted Are Good For 30 Days From The Date Of The Quote
*Sales Tax Will Be Applied Uniess BWE Has A Tax Exempt Certificate On File

*Customer Is Responsible And Liable For Officading Equipment Upon Delivery Uniess Alternate Methods Have Been Arranged

Prior To Delivery

Order Terms and Conditions:
Order Confirmation - quotes are confirmed into orders based on customer verbal or written confirmation.

ALL INFORMATION CONTAINED (N A CONFIRMED QUOTE WILL BE CONSIDERED CORRECT AND ACCURATE AT THE

TIME OF THE ORDER

Purchase Orders are recommended and preferred to confirm an order. The quoted product itam, price, quantity, and

specifications are also acknowiedged at the time ihe order is confirmed.

Pﬂmmbosmhmwmwwmbm.pMWdﬂnwm logistics, or

dalivery schadule.

'Ordorm-moaleﬁormisedmwmmhmadyinpmdudbnmustbeappmedbyawsandwlllbe

subject to 25% cancelation or change order fee.
“Fees may be higher on cusiom engineered products.

Payment Terms - method and payment terms are confirmed at time of order. New accounts will be subject to a deposit,

Waﬁlw@mmumamﬂmmﬁnumfwmmm

Warranty ~ standard BWE warranty applies 1o all new products sold. Warranty date begins on the date the product is received

and is only valld if the products have been received, and paid for in full

swngounqea-mwmmmmumdwmmmmmmmwmmmm
Failure to0 do so may jeopardize any demage claim to repair, retum, or replace the damaged product. Customer is responsible

for officading equipment, and is liable for any damages incurred during offioading

-Remmny-mmmmmmmmmwmawsmwmmm. Standard items returned are
subject to a 26% restocking fee. Feas may be higher or retumn authorization declinded it the products are custom engineered.

“BWE reserves the sole right to waive any retum or restocking fees.

Phone: 828-726-3001 Fax: (828) 726-3010 USA: 800-221-4153 ) Wabsits: www.fisetgenius.com




‘ FleetGenius of NC QUOTATION Original

1808 Norwood St SW
' s Lenoir NC 28645 Quote No.: 49265

J USA Date: 03/02/23

Valld Untii; 04/02/23
FLEETGENIUS" Customer No.: Co1869
Customer Ref. No.:
Page No.: Page 3 of 3
item No. Description Unit Price Quantity Total

PINNACLE COMPACTOR DISCLAIMER:

+~SITE READINESS™™

Customer is responsible for the removal of any existing equipment prior to installation new equipment
Customer will provide a cisan, level, concrete ped o spec for compactor Installations
CustometlsmpmﬂbhfwsmMmmedmhuwbediminllmdslgMdmoeom
Electrical disconnect box must be ready ("hot”) w/ the proper fuss prior to compactor installation
Upon installation, compactors will be lsveled, secured to the pad, and tested

Remocte power units will be located In close proximity to the compactor and eleciric disconnect

Power units are free standing and not bolted to the pad unless spacified

***Compactors ordered without fabricated ioad options are subject to the 84" Rule (ANSI 245.2)*

*If the 84" Rule is not met, then the compactor will be equipped w/ “Hold To Run Controls”

“In lieu of Hold To Run, an “Auto Start Key Switch® can be offered providing the customer assumes responsibifity for
compliance with the 84" Rule
‘Disdsimufoﬂmforclgnoﬂ'.Muuummwwthou”mbammllabbwon request

**“IF BWE PINNACLE IS DELIVERING AND / OR INSTALLING, THE CUSTOMER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR OFFLOADING AND
PLACEMENT OF EQUIPMENT UPON DELIVERY UNLESS PRIOR ARRANGEMENTS HAVE BEEN MADE*™

"'Aumgtycmmmmmmmdemmimmwwmwm:mnmm
Upon receipt of the damaged/defective part, BWEIPInnadewiIldlwmeill:nandptmthsmmlm
accordingly

Ifthapmis.dmdddeetm. then the repiacement part will be provided at no charge
If the part is found to be abused or physically damaged due to misuse, then the replacement part will be invoiced

All and are to the BWE / Pinnacle 1 from date of purchase
Subtotal $51,882.00
Discount
IO Shipping $2,842.00
Romarks: SC-30& {4) ROR-25-22 Tax $4,832.3¢
2 TL Freight Total $ 89,736.38
Lead Times Approx 6 Weeks

Phone: 828-728-3001 Fax: (828) 726-3010 USA: 800-221-4183 Waebsite: www.fleetgonius.com




EQUIPMENT & REPAIR SERVICE
185 industrial Or. Giiberts, IL 60138

Gliberts Office (847) 844-4131

281 E. Sauk Trail South Chicago Heights, IL 60411
South Chicago Offics (T08) 758-2082
wen.samenteacuipment. com

SALES PROPOSAL
Your Complete Source for New and Used Equipment

DOOSAN®MAXPAK BALERS® CRAM-A-LOT COMPACTORS @ SANI-TECH COMPACTORS

0. 55 S
Dalias Lossiter Phone: (843) 726-7740
Company: Josper County Email: dassleniseperoountvac ooy

Address: 358 3rd Ave. Sales:  Lou DeSelvo (708) 321-0030

r{4 25 Yard Open Containers

One (1) 39 Yard Seif-Contained Compactor
Unit Price  Extension
Four (4) Rudco 25 Yard Open Top Containers $7,296.30 $29,185.20
18' Deck
62" Sides
x5 Formed Stiffeners on 34" Centers
Two (2) 8" Ground Wheels
1/4" Floor Pigte
3/16" Side Plates 62" High
Preight to 29936 $330.00 $1,320.00
Contuiners Total ~ $7,626.30  $30,505.20
One (1) Rudco 40 Yard Self-Contoined Compactor $27,296.50  $27,296.50
24' Roils
Two 4" Hydraulfic Cylinders
10 HP Motor, 230 Volt, 3ph
80% and 100% Full Light
Weather Cover for Power Unit
Color Coded Pressure Gauge
15’ Controf Remote
Guide Isiand
One (1) Year Factory Warronty
Freight to 29936 $1,540.00 $1,540.00
Compactor Total ~$28,836.50  $28,896.50
EQUIPMENT TOTAL $59,341.70
8% Sales Yox $4,518.54
SALES TOTAL $63,860.24
Compactor Options:
Doghouse with Heovy Duty Door, Siide Bolt and Interfock $1504.80
Terms : Psyment due at time of order. Balance en equipment s to ship.
Lead Time: Compactor 4-6 weeks
25 Yard Containers 6-7 weeks
FOB: NJ
M
Lou DeSalvo Lon DsSalee

(Area Manager Printed) (Area Manage Signed)



This proposal may be withdrawn by us i€ not accepted within (30) days. Equipment is offered subject to prior rental oc sale, All spplicable
taxes ane for customers account. No warranty implied 67 expressed unless otherwise stated.

Daste: By: .

Printed name
Lou DeSalvo
Cell (708) 321-0030
Office (847) 844-4131 Signed name
LouftiSargenisequipment.com
24 HOUR SERVICE¢SALESPARTS Company

BILL OF SALE DISCLAMER

New Equipment Wamanty: Stendard manufactures warranty applies

immemwmmmmmmmwumhmmm-Asls'wmmmmm.euhu
wﬁusn.m«lmm.mmmwmmam.nw.mhunmbﬂubmafwrkmm

Buyer, is to obtein full ownership of the equipment after the fidl payment of the hase price has been 1o Sargents &
WSu\deo.lnc..auwlaﬁnquﬂonﬂmmang&Mlmmmmmmbmﬁmgm
this date (uniess speclficatly specified on involce).

nunmmbmpaummmmmumammmmummudummmbmmo
inveice, therefore, canceling the sale. The Bl of Sale Is vatid upon payment in full.

mmmmmm«wwwmmmwmauu equipment and a3 to safe operation of sald
oquipment. In addiion. Buyer acknowledges and accepts full responsibiiity and Nabiity for any action or cause of action for personal

mnmmnm.mmw.mm-umbmlmmmwm.mw sending any form of
mm(womnﬂn.m.Mormh)lnufumbllummbn.m:lgnmmmmzmorm?wa
the terms and conditions of this contract and involce.

The invalced party agrees not to take any legal actions regarding this transaction at any time inst Sargents Equipment & Repair
Service, Inc.. Please note: All operators of this equipment should be trained puudomwnz.;m.ﬂuwmmm
-mpomlhluybmnwommwmﬂmhmmmwmhmadllmdhﬂnodmnb.




CONTAINERS

RUDCO

| PRODUCTS . INGC

VA AN r‘ u d C u HeT=Tih




nunco Standard Rectangular Open Top

e — H
PRODUCTS, INC Roll-Off Containers
A
‘r =
- ]
4 b __
5 —0
< w
item Contalner (A) (8) ©) © Approximate
Number Size Height Inside  Height Outside | Width | Overail Len}th Weight
A-4250 11YD 43" 55" 96" 129" 2,930 1bs
A-4251 15YD 43" 55" 96" 16'9" 3,6801ibs
A-4252 20YD 43" 55" 96" 22'9" 4,520 |bs
A-4254 30YD 62" 74" 96" 22'9" 51701bs
A-4256 40YD 84" 96" 95" 229" 6,040 Ibs
STANDARD DECK

3/18° PL. Aloor Sheet 3" Structural Channe! on 20° Centars

318" PL. Gussets on Every Other Cross Member

8" x 2" x 3/16° Tuba One Plece Main Ral)

Four 8" diameter x 8" LG. Heavy Duty Wheele

4* 0D x 4" LG Front Rolier w/1%° Pin and Grease Fliting

1" Certifiod Hook Plate {w/Lifelime Guarantes)

%" Certified Plate Cable Hook {w/Lifetime Quarantoe)

114" Plate Sold Buinose

FRONT AND SIDES

& 11 Ga. Shest with Tie Down Bar

® 10 Ga. Ons Plece Formed Dog House

B 4°x3" x11Ga. Top Tube

[ ] 11en.:rxs-memmsmmﬁmmcdmmwmcmunmmmeommm
Molsturg Retention

B Two Vartical Formed Bulkhead Stiffeners With Notches at Bottom to Prevent Moisture Retention

REAR CORNER POST

# Latch Side 4" x 3" 11 Gauge Tube

= Hinge Side 3° x 8.5" x 3/16" formed stiffener 4-way bend

REAR DOOR

] 128&@&!&%4‘:3‘“1&T@9Ffmmmmm126&FomledWllham"wetyOhdn

& Hinges 1I2"x7'x9'&1I2'x3‘x4'Phteswlh2'ODMedu'thlbewwGrmHﬂhas& 1-3/16" Cold Rollad Pin
STANDARD DOOR LOCK

& Southem Styla Latch - Hook & Pin System
» mm:wmmm.wmmwmzm&wmmmm

Veticel Uit Handlle is Securely Welded to a Cam Style for Easy Opening and Closing Operations. Handle ia Secured by 3/4° Solid Pin,
180° Tumn Keyway Locking System

mimu‘t ===y a-hn: 1008 000 sens LY d CO.com



n U Dca 800-828-2234

R e i § e g P.O. Box 705
MANUFACTURERS OF CONTAINERS, Vineland, New Jersey 08360
COMPACTORS - ROLL OFF HOISTS www.rudco.com

Standard Color Selection

(o

Beige Light Blue Dark Blue

PO3-077 « AAWO430 PO3-080 » AADO321 PO3-083 » AALO713 PO3-056 = AALO?708

Red

Burgundy Dark Green Marttime Teal
PO3-075 = AARCT787 P03-085 « AAR0S16 PO3-064 » AAG0B64 P03-084 = AAGOS68
Yellow Orange Dark Gray Dark Brown
PO3-079 » AAY1014 P03-088 » AAEQ306 P03-076 * AAA1047 P0O3-067 « AABD228

Valspar enamel is a high-solids, high-gloss enamel that
meets EPA regulations.

R sty st s, VAISPAT

PO3-078 +» AAA1033 Colors shown are an approdimate match, it mattess, we're on 9



& ki Enaboer

° . MAXPN( BALERS -
e SANI-TECH AtéGER COMPACTORS |
CONTACT . ~ CRAM-A-LOT COMPACTORS
S NOW o SHEAR CORE MOBILE SHEARS AND
: PROCESSORS
281 E. Sauk Trail o MOLEY MAGNETS
South Chicago Heights, IL 60411~ o DOOSAN HEAVY EQUIPMENT
706.750.2082 o USED BALERS, CONVEYORS,
155 Industrial Drive s C@M pACTORS\. SHEARS MATERIAL
Gllbert's, I 60136 i e HANDLERS WHEEL LOABERS AND
847.844.4131 e "MUCH N -

ORVISITOUR WEBITEBELOW! =




BALER/COMPACTOR/CONVEYOR:

o SERVICE, REPAIR,
FABRICATION

o BALE WIRE

e PLC

o HYDRAULICS

e CYLINDER REPAIR AND
REBUILD

o EQUIPMENT INSTALL AND
REMOVAL




COMPACTORS

RUDCO

PROUUCT S, ING

e 1L B00 L RE 22T (M WWW'PUdco'Com




Self Contained

|RIJDCD

PRODUCTS, INC Compactors
o
= =
L ]
_’
b
L [

N 200000 W0 L e
CHMARGE BOX AR - MIPO. RATING 2008 WA0S 20 G e O0MIC WS 200EWDS
ASWAA RATING 157 CUND DS | 157 DI ENDS 157 GER VDS 157 O VDS
OVOLE Yens £ 1Y nEx DX, £
HORMAL RAM FORGH nam "o N0 N
SAAKIMUIS RAM POROS “om "o “m ]
NORMAL OPEAATIID PRIGEUAE me " 1m0 "
MAX OPER. PASIUNE IN SUANUAL MODS ) ] 20
MAX OPEN. PRESOURE IN MFFO CVOLE 20 00 "
YL (ROMR X STROKE X ROD) [l xZT 3 AMmartese LY, U ET S AT Y 25
MoTon W nw e e
PUNP SN LT LT ] o nsou
ACIEN PLOOR 1 ANTE Y RATE wrn urstan
PAOKER SI2E3 AATEW Y (e T UTEW I ONEL AT O VAT OWEE.
RAM 0P LT YERATE 1" RGE '
RAM FACE VI PUTE NI R VI RTINS T RATWND MR U MATEWAKY MBLE
CHARGE BOX OPRNING W xer acxer e bt T
DEAENSION - A =-vr n.ar 104~ 14 we-wr
DIMENION -9 m wr wr »r
DENNON - © wr »r ar or
DITMNNN - D B o-ue o-w 7.3
CRIENEION - & " - o o
DIMENSION - F 13 “ur ®-n u-w
DIMENBION - & & «-wr @ 0w
DISENEION - U 2w 2w .- n-w
DRIEINN0N - | e »r wr wmw
WRAHY s e "nm ™
AVAILABLE OPTIONS ® ThuWeiChute Rear 40HX98LWEh = Hi Temp - Low OF Shutdown
o Guide Rafl 40° x 44° Door (40° x 40" Free Stending Chuta) 5 Color Pressure Gauge
8 Doghouse W/ 30x40" Door On Each Side 5 Hinged Dook Extension =® Ol Hoater
& Hopper 45° {Celiar Type) With Doors = Single Phass Power Unit = Qzone Qdor Control System
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF JASPER

ORDINANCE #0-2023-05

AN ORDINANCE
OF JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL

TO AUTHORIZE JASPER COUNTY TO ENTER INTO A
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING/LEASE AGREEMENT
WITH JASPER RIDGELAND YOUTH BASEBALL, INC. (“JRYB”)
FOR THE USE OF ATHLETIC FACILITIES.

WHEREAS, Jasper County is the owner of real property having TMP Number
062-22-01-007 consisting of approximately 7.977 cares, more or less, generally known as
the Baseball Field Complex (the “Ball Field Facility”) adjacent to; and

WHEREAS, the Jasper Ridgeland Youth Baseball. Inc. (“JRYB”), is a nonprofit
corporation sharing a common interest with Jasper County of providing the residents of
Jasper County with recreation opportunities; and

WHEREAS, Jasper County and JRYB previously had Memoranda of
Understandings/Lease Agreements which, among other things, provided for the Lease of
the Ball Field Facility in exchange for their assistance in providing recreational
opportunities at the Ball Field Facility, among other things, and now desire to enter into
a new Memorandum of Understanding/Lease Agreement by execution of the attached
Memorandum of Understanding/Lease Agreement, which, among other things, provides
for an allocation of responsibilities and terms for the use and occupancy of the Field
Facility; and

WHEREAS, Jasper County Council believes that it would be a benefit for the
citizens of Jasper County to enter into the Memorandum of Understanding/Lease
Agreement, which will provide enhanced recreational opportunities for the general
citizenry of Jasper County from time to time;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Jasper County Council in
council duly assembled and by the authority of the same:

1. Jasper County Council approves the Memorandum of Agreement/Lease
Agreement of the Ball Field Facilities as described above to Jasper Ridgeland Youth
Baseball, Inc., on terms substantially consistent with those include in the attached
Exhibit “A;” and upon approval of the Memorandum of Understanding/Lease
Agreement, and other related documents by the County Attorney, the County
Administrator shall be and is hereby authorized to execute, and the Clerk to Council is



hereby authorized to attest and deliver such Memorandum of Agreement/Lease
Agreement, and other related documents as may be necessary or desirable and in so
doing, to bind Jasper County and Jasper Ridgeland Youth Baseball, Inc. to the terms of
the Memorandum of Agreement/Lease Agreement.

2, This ordinance shall take effect upon approval by Council.
Martin L. Sauls, IV
Chairman of County Council
ATTEST:
Wanda Simmons
Clerk to Council

Ordinance #0-2023-05

First Reading: 03.06.2023

Second Reading: 04.03.2023

Public Hearings: 04.03.2023

Third Reading: 04.17.2023

Adopted: 04.17.2023

It is required that the following Exhibit be attached before the second reading:

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING/LEASE AGREEMENT.

Reviewed for form and draftsmanship by the Jasper County Attorney.

David L. Tedder Date



EXHIBIT “A”

Memorandum of Understanding/Lease Agreement (MOU)
Between

Jasper County Parks and
Recreation Department

And

Jasper Ridgeland Youth Baseball, Inc.



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )
MEMORANDUM OF

)
) UNDERSTANDING/LEASE AGREEMENT
COUNTY OF JASPER )

JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL, and Jasper-Ridgeland Youth Baseball Inc, hereafter referred to
as “JRYB”, whose address is P.O. Box 728, Ridgeland, SC 29936, agree as follows:

1. JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL agrees to lease to JRYB, subject to conditions set forth in
this agreement and subject to easements and conditions of record, certain property
described as follows:

All that certain piece, parcel, or lot of land situated, lying and being in the County of
Jasper, South Carolina, described as 7.97 acres in a survey created on August 30, 1999,
by Thomas G. Stanley, Jr., and recorded at the Office of the Clerk of Court for Jasper
County at Plat Book 24 at Page 87. Said piece, parcel or lot of land being the same as was
conveyed to Jasper County by deed recorded in the Office of the Clerk of Court for
Jasper County in Deed Book 121 at Page 176 and described as Tax Map #062-22-1-008
of the Office of the Jasper County Assessor.

2. JRYB agrees to pay rent in the amount of One ($1.00) Dollar per year,

3. The term of the Lease shall be Five (5) years, commencing upon the date of the execution
of this lease document; subject to Jasper County’s right to terminate the lease at any time

should any of the conditions of the lease which are referenced in this agreement are
breached.

4. The above referenced property must be used for youth baseball or other recreational
activities sanctioned and approved by JRYB and by Jasper County Parks & Recreation
Department throughout the term of the lease.

5. Youth baseball, or any other events held on the property, must be open for participation
and viewing to all residents of Jasper County, regardless of race, religion, ethnic origin,
or any other protected class. JRYB shall advertise the dates and places for its enrollment
at both public and private schools in Jasper County. Nothing herein shall be construed to
prohibit JRYB from establishing and enforcing rules for discipline and the orderly
conduct of events on the property, provided that the rules are enacted and applied ina
non-discriminatory manner.

6. Third Party use other than JRYB will remit payment Fifty ($50.00) Dollars per field, per
use with such proceeds to be shared 50/50 between JRYB and Jasper County.

7. Upon satisfactory completion of the term of this lease, JRYB shall have the option to
enter into negotiation for the lease of the property for an additional term and rental
amount to be determined by Jasper County.



8.  All permanent improvements to the property, including, but not limited to buildings,
fences, and other appurtenances, are the property of Jasper County. JRYB may not
remove, modify, destroy or relocate any buildings, fences or appurtenances.

9. JRYB must remedy any breach of this agreement within thirty (30) calendar days after
notification from Jasper County of any such breach.

10. This lease may not be assigned or subleased without the written permission of Jasper
County.

IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, the parties have set their hand and seals on this day of
February 2023.
JASPER COUNTY
Witness County Administrator
Witness

JASPER RIDGELAND YOUTH BASEBALL,
INC.

Witness - President

Witness
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Jasper County
Recommended Needs Assessment Prioritization 2023
Community Development Block Grant {(CDBG)

Public Facilities/ Community Enrichment Activities to Include:

. Public Safety Buildings (Renovation/Replacement)

Consolidated Sheriff Facilities
Coosawhatchie Fire Station/Community Center

Public Services Buildings (Replacement)
Department of Social Services (DSS)

Election & Voter Registration

Fire Station (Equipment)
. Community Centers (Renovation)
° Boat Landings (Renovation}

Water, Sewer, Drainage Infrastructure improvements as determined
by studies, CIP plans etc., focusing on Low-Moderate Income (LMI)
areas such as:

. Levy Limehouse

° Wagon Branch

. Tillman

) Other areas; as identified in future

Economic Development (projects as they are developed)

Neighborhood Revitalization

Affordable Housing

Development Services 04/12/2023
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JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL

WORKSHOP AND
COUNCIL MEETING

Jasper County Clementa C. Pinckney Government Bldg.

358 3rd Avenue Ridgeland, SC 29936
Monday, March 6, 2023

MINUTES

Officials Present: Chairman L. Martin Sauls IV, Vice Chairwoman Barbara B. Clark,
Councilman Pastor Alvin Adkins, Councilman John Kemp and Councilman Coy
Garbade.

Staff Present: County Administrator Andrew Fulghum, Clerk to Council Wanda H. Simmons,
County Attorney David Tedder, Kimberly Burgess, Russell Wells, Lisa Wagner, and Videographer
Jonathan Dunham.

Also Present: Jessica Dailey, Lowcountry Council of Governments

Chairman Sauls called the meeting to order at 5:30PM and welcomed everyone to the Workshop.
Chairman Sauls asked the Clerk to Council to read the Report of Compliance to the Freedom of
Information Act. Ms. Simmons, Clerk to Council to read the Clerk’s Report of Compliance with the Freedom
of Information Act as follows: In compliance with the Freedom of Information Act, notice of meetings and
agendas were posted and furnished to all news media and persons requesting notification.

Executive Session SECTION 30-4-70.
(a) A public body may hold a meeting closed to the public for one or more of the following reasons:

(1) Discussion of employment, appointment, compensation, promotion, demotion,
discipline, or release of an employee, a student, or a person regulated by a public body or
the appointment of a person to a public body — Auditor; Treasurer; Magistrates; Emergency Services

(2) Discussion of negotiations incident to proposed contract arrangements and proposed purchase
or sale of property, the receipt of legal advice where the legal advice related to pending,
threatened, or potential claim or other matters covered by the attorney-client privilege, settlement
of legal claims, or the position of the public agency in other adversary situations involving the
assertion against the agency of a claim—

Hangar Lease TMP # 061-21-01-001-M3; THC, Inc. - Rt. 278 Widening Project; Bailey Park;

Davis V. Jasper County

(5) Discussion of matters relating to the proposed location, expansion, or the provision
of services encouraging location or expansion of industries or other businesses in
the area served by a public body - Prospect Update; Project Refurb; Jasper Ocean Terminal

Minutes -
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ANY EXECUTIVE SESSION MATTER ON WHICH DISCUSSION HAS NOT BEEN COMPLETED MAY HAVE
DISCUSSION SUSPENDED FOR PURPOSES OF BEGINNING THE OPEN SESSION AT ITS SCHEDULED TIME, AND .
COUNCIL MAY RETURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION DISCUSSION AFTER THE CONCLUSION OF THE OPEN SESSION
AGENDA ITEMS. PLEASE BE ADVISED THERE MAY BE VOTES BASED ON ITEMS FROM THE EXECUTIVE SESSION,

Motion to go into Executive Session: Councilman Adkins
Second: Vice Chairwoman Clark

Vote: Unanimous

The motion passed.

Return to Open Session:

Motion to approve: Councilman Kemp
Second: Councilman Adkins

Vote: Unanimous

The motion passed.

Action coming out of Executive Session:

Motion to move to authorize the Administrator to negotiate the renewal extension on Hangar 34 for the
term and conditions discussed in executive session including the execution of the lease for

TMP 062-21-01-00100 : Councilman Adkins

Second: Councilman Kemp

Vote: Unanimous

The motion passed.

The Pledge of Allegiance was given, and the Invocation was led by Councilman Adkins.

Discussion of Consent Agenda and Agenda Items:
There was no discussion on the consent agenda or agenda items.

Approval of Agenda:

Motion to approve: Vice Chairwoman Clark
Second: Councilman Adkins

Vote: Unanimous

The motion passed.

Approval of the Minutes 12.05.2022 and 01.03.2023:

Motion to approve: Vice Chairwoman Clark
Second: Councilman Adkins

Vote: Unanimous

The motion passed.

Minutes -
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PUBLIC HEARINGS AND ACTION ITEMS

Jessica Dailey of the Lowcountry Council of Governments - Public Hearing and Presentation on the
Annual Needs Assessment for Jasper County.

Jessica Dailey was present to hold the public hearing and do a presentation on the annual Needs
Assessment for Jasper County. She discussed the 2023 CDBG Grant, Fair Housing and Discrimination.
She provided a phone number for anyone interested to call the Lowcounty Council of Governments at
843.473.3990. She discussed low- and moderate-income families and what that meant to the program.
She discussed the Community Development Program and noted that Jasper County should be in the Fall
Round. She discussed community infrastructure, community enrichment and local priorities. She also
mentioned the Business Development Program and the Regional Plan Program. For additional
information on this presentation please go and visit our YouTube Channel
https://www.youtube.com/channel /UCBmlogX05cKAsHm_ggXCJiA .

Lisa Wagner — Public hearing and consideration of 2" reading of Ordinance #0-2023-03 to Amend
Article 8:8 of the Jasper County Zoning Ordinance, Gateway Corridor Overlay District {(“GCOD”), to
better define the location of the designated highway and amend the Official Zoning Map of Jasper
County to expand the GCOD to include the property located on the southwest corner of the
intersection of Alligator Alley and Off Ramp Road as depicted on the attached map.

Ms. Wagner was present to address this request. The Planning Commission received an application to rezone a
property located at the intersection of Alligator Alley and Off Ramp Road, which was reviewed at their November
2022 Meeting. After some discussion, it was decided that extending the Gateway Corridor Overlay District
(GCOD] to include the subject property may be a better alternative than re-zaning the property. The GCOD
allows additional uses that are found in the General Commercial District, while prohibiting uses that have been
identified as inappropriate for the Gateway Corridor. The GCOD aiso requires additiona! design standards, which
are intended to protect the character and appearance of the entrance into Jasper County. The proposed
ordinance would adopt the GCOD Map, amend Article 8:8.2, Gateway Corridor Overiay District of the Jasper

County Zoning Ordinance, as outlined below, and amend the Official Zoning Map of Jasper County to expand the
GCOD.

Article 8:8.2, Application:
(new language in red)

The GCOD shall apply to all land within five hundred feet (500°) of the right-of- way of Highway 17, beginning
at the intersection of Strain Place and ending at Alligator Aly as depicted on the GCOD Map the-designated

highway. The regulations of this overlay shall apply to all new non-residential development and any existing
development which meets the following criteria:

* Any change of use of a non-residential property, and/or

* Any building expansion that increases the floor area of a non-residential use by 20 percent or more or
any parking addition of ten (10) or more spaces.

Minutes -
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{Commentary: The overlay applies if a vacant property converts to any non-residential use; a change in non-
residential use such as a restaurant to a hardware store. However, changes of similar uses (e.g., retail to retail)
would not apply unless parking or floor area is increased by the thresholds listed.}

Unless a deviation from such restrictions are provided elsewhere in this Section 8:8, property within the GCOD
shall be required to adhere to all provisions of the Jasper County Zoning Ordinance and Land Development
Regulations otherwise applicable within the underlying zoning district.

Ms. Wagner noted that the Planning Commission recommends approval of the Zoning Text Amendment to
Include adoption of the GCOD Map and the amendment of the Official Jasper County Zoning Map to extend the
GCOD. The public hearing was opened but there were no public comments so the public hearing was closed.

Motion to approve: Councilman Adkins
Second: Vice Chairwoman Clark

Vote: Unanimous

The motion passed.

Lisa Wagner - Public hearing and consideration of 2nd reading of Ordinance #0-2022-26 to adopt
Planned Development District for two tracts of land consisting of approximately 26.63 acres, bearing
Jasper County Tax Map Numbers 081-00-04-007 and 081-00-04-080, located along N. Okatie Highway
(Highway 170), approximately 2 miles east of the intersection of Highway 462, and known as Bailey
Park PDD (1* reading 08.15.2022; 2™ reading was tabled at the 09.06.2022 meeting)

Ms. Wagner noted that the Applicant has requested a Planned Development District (PDD) zoning designation
for a mixed-use development, which will be known as Bailey Park. The project site consists of two parcels, which
are identified by tax map numbers 081-00-04-007 and 081-00-04-080. Tract A is tax map number 081-00-04-007
and is currently zoned Community Commercial, consisting of 6.63 acres. Tract B is tax map number 081-00-04-
080 and is currently zoned Residential, consisting of 20 acres. The properties are located along Highway 170,
approximately 2 miles east of the intersection of Highway 462 and has frontage along Old Bailey Road. Both
properties are vacant and have not been developed.

The Planning Commission originally reviewed this application in May 2022. The County Council approved 1%
Reading on August 15, 2022 and 2™ Reading was tabled on September 6, 2022. A Public Hearing was also held
on September 6, 2022. Since that time, the applicant has revised the PDD document to remove all commercial
uses and designate both parcels as residential. The proposed density has been decreased from 12 units to 7.5
units per acre. The traffic study was revised based on residential uses only, at 12 units per acre. {See more
details about the revisions on page 3 in red). The Planning Commission reviewed these changes at their February
14, 2023 Meeting and recommended approval by majority. In accordance with Article 8:1 of the Jasper County
Zoning Ordinance, the intent of a PDD is to encourage flexibility in the development of land to promote its most
appropriate use; and to do so in 2 manner that will enhance public health, safety, morals, and general welfare.
The PDD, regulations are intended to accomplish the purpose of zoning and other applicable regulations to an
equivalent or higher degree and are designed to control unscheduled development on individual lots or tracts,
promote economical and efficient land use, provide an improved level of amenities, foster a harmonious variety
of uses, encourage creative design, and produce a better environment. In view of the substantial public
advantage of “planned development,” it is the intent of the PDD regulations to promote and encourage or
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require development in this form where appropriate in character, timing, and location, particularly in large
undeveloped tracts. All PDD’s shall conform to the Jasper County Comprehensive Land Use Plan and Land Use
Map (latest edition). She noted that according to the 2018 Jasper County Comprehensive Plan, the Future Land
Use Map identifies this area as “Rural Conservation,” which seeks to protect and promote the character of
Jasper County that largely exists today outside of the municipalities. In these areas, new development should be
thoughtfully placed within the existing landscape.

The Land Use Chapter of the Comprehensive Plan recommends guiding growth and new development in or
around the municipalities where infrastructure and services are available to serve new growth.

While this project site is not near a municipality, it is located in an area where infrastructure and services are
available to serve the site. Figure 1 of the packet showed the project location and Table 1 showed the adjacent
land uses and zoning designation. One of the properties is accessed by North Okatie Highway (Highway 170),
which is a four-lane state maintained highway, classified as an arterial road. The other property has direct access
to Old Bailey Road, which is a two-lane state maintained road classified as a local road.

The revised Bailey Park PDD Concept Plan illustrates the proposed uses, the general layout, and access points. A
Master Plan will be submitted separately and will provide additional information regarding the layout of the
development.

REVISIONS: The revisions to the Bailey Park PDD changes Tract A from mixed use commercial to residential with a
mixed housing product. This eliminates 65,000 square feet of commercial uses and adds no more than 7.5 units
per acre, which may be in the form of apartments, townhomes, or single family detached houses. Tract B has
been changed from 12 units per acre (233 units} to 7.5 units per acre. Based on the upland acres, the total
residential density for both Tract A and B will be limited to approximately 187 units,

The traffic study was revised and is based on 300 townhouses with no commercial. This traffic study compared to
the 1% traffic study reduces the total daily trips from 4,186 to 1,998 total daily trips. The AM peak hour trips were
reduced from 168 trips to 116 trips, while the PM peak hour trips were reduced from 374 trips to 150 trips. With
the reduction of density to 7.5 units per acre, the traffic count will be further reduced by approximately 35%.

The revised PDD proposes to establish the following:

* Access Points — One full access point is proposed along Highway 170 and a second full access point is
proposed along Old Bailey Road.

» Allowed Land Uses — Tract A and Tract B is proposed as multi-family residential, and single family detached
and attached residential {townhomes). With multi-family being limited to Tract A.

¢ Density — The overall density proposed for Bailey Park PDD is 7.5 units per acre of uplands, approximately 187
units.

* Open Space — 10% open space for residential land uses with 1.25 acres devoted for active open space for
community use,

o Buffers — Tract A will require a 50’ buffer along Highway 170 and both Tract A and Tract B will require a 20
buffer around the perimeter except where there is an existing residential use adjacent to the property, the
buffer will be 30'. In regard to setbacks and buffers, the International Fire Code will be met.

¢ Setbacks - For detached single-family residential and duplexes, the side setbacks are 6’, rear yard setbacks are

15’, and front yard setbacks are 25’ for lots with front loaded garages, and 15’ setbacks for lots with side
Minutes -
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loaded garages. For attached single-family residential, townhomes, or condominiums there will be no
minimum setbacks except for a 6’ side setbacks from non-common property lines,

* Landscaping Standards — will meet or exceed the County’s requirements.

* Utilities — Water and Sewer will be provided by BJWSA; Electric will be provided by Dominion Energy;
Telephone Service will be provided by Hargray.

A full environmental assessment of the site has been conducted {this was provided in the May 2022 submittal).

The Traffic Impact Analysis has been revised and is included with this staff report. The approved jurisdictional
determination letter is included in Appendix C of the PDD (this is a new item).

A zoning designation of PDD does not entitle an applicant or owner of the affected property a right to develop or
engage in any land use or land disturbing activity, other than the rights in existence at the time of the Concept
Plan approval. To engage in development or any land use or land disturbing activity, a Master Plan and
subsequent Development Plan(s} must be approved for the areas to be developed. While the Concept Plan is
very generalized, a Master Plan is a more refined document, which will be reassessed by the Planning
Commission at a future date. As such, the Planning Commission recommends approval of the PDD designation,
the PDD document, and the Concept Plan. There had been a second reading on 09.06.2022 which was tabled
after holding the public hearing on that same date.

The public hearing was opened. Council discussed this item and offered up some questions and the Developer
and Ms. Wagner was present to address those. The following public comments were offered up:

Grant McClure discussed this item and specific measures that should be put into place. He asked that Council
follow guidelines for conservation design. He also furnished information to provide with the minutes regarding
his discussion of this item. This item is attached as “Attachment A”

Cathy DeCourey was present to discuss her concerns with the project.

Ben Kennedy stated his viewpoints on the project and asked Council to look harder before making a decision.
George Ward stated his viewpoints on this matter and noted that a letter from BJWSA was not worth anything.
Jerry Reeves he stated that he wasn’t against development, it was just that this was a bad development.
Christy Smith she noted her concerns of the project and mentioned the traffic and situation that was ongoing
with growing traffic issues.

Ann Copley discussed her thoughts on this development and the concerns of traffic, runoff and drainage.

Erika Bailey Gainey discussed her concerns with this project and asked that the land be kept at the current rural
zoning.

Debbie Cooler expressed her shock that this came thru the Planning Commission, noting this was a rural
community and discussed her concerns.

Motion to approve the 2" reading: Councilman Garbade
Second: None

Motion to table to have a workshop: Councilman Kemp
Second: Counciiman Adkins

Vote: Unanimous

The motion passed.
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Kimberly Burgess ~ Public hearing and consideration of the 2"? reading of Ordinance
#0-2023-04 of the County Of Jasper, amending the Fiscal Year 2022 — 2023 Budget as
originally adopted by Ordinance No. 2022-17 adopted June 27, 2022, in accordance with The
Local Government Code Of The State Of South Carolina and the Ordinances And Rules Of
The County Of Jasper, South Carolina; Appropriating the various amounts thereof, to
provide for the Expenditure of not to exceed $635,000 from the Fund Balance for the
Purchase of a Storage Array System and Repealing all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in
conflict therewith, and providing an effective date,

Ms. Burgess was here to review and present this request for Council. She noted that the
Council had approved the purchase of the storage array and this was to approve the payment
of such. A public hearing was held but there were no public comments so the public hearing
was closed.

Motion to approve: Vice Chairwoman Clark
Second: Councilman Adkins

Vote: Unanimous

The motion passed.

Danny Lucas ~ Consideration of the 1* reading of an Ordinance to authorize Jasper County to Enter Into
A Memorandum of Understanding/Lease Agreement with Jasper-Ridgeland Youth Baseball,
Inc. (“IRYB") for the use of Athletic Facilities.

Mr. Lucas was here to present and review this request. He noted that there had been a previous lease
and the new lease would be for the same acres but at a 5 year lease.

Motion to approve: Vice Chairwoman Clark
Second: Councilman Adkins

Vote: Unanimous

The motion passed.

PRESENTATIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS

Ryan Lee, CEO of Coastal Carolina Hospital — Presentation of a Brief Hospital Update

Mr. Ryan Lee was present to give the current state of affairs of the Coastal Carolina Hospital. He noted
that they had a great 2022 year and employ over 500 colleagues. He said they also carried the Stroke
Certification and are one of the best in the nation. They have seen over 40,000 persons annual in the ER;
and noted that their ER performance is ahead of the national benchmarks. He also noted that the L & D
program celebrated 10 years and that NICU would be added to the hospital in April. He noted that

they serviced over 60 babies, and also discussed the Hospital’s Robotics Program.

Please visit https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmlogX05cKAsHm_ggXCJIA for more information.
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Dr. Rechel Anderson — Update on the Jasper County School District

Dr. Anderson provided an update to the Council for the Jasper County School District. She discussed the
JCSD'’s purpose, vision and mission. In her presentation she discussed and provided:
¢An introduction of District Staff / School Leaders
eStudent enrollment and demographics
sCareer readiness opportunities
oStaffing
Certified Staff Members: approx. 190
Classified Staff Members: approx. 174
Administration: 3
Drivers: 16
Bus Aides: 4
Trainees in Progress: 4
o Starting Pay
eFinancial stability
eCampus Safety
sOpportunities
o STEM (Science, Technology, Engineering, and Mathematics)
o Early Learning and Literacy
o Language Immersion Program
o Dual Enrollment Program and Goals
Please visit https://www.youtube.com/channel /UCBmlogX05cKAsHm_ggXCJIA for more information.

0 0O 0 0 0 0

Proclamations: None

CITIZEN COMMENTS

Open Floor to the Public per Ordinance 08-17 Any citizen of the County may sign to speak in person at
the Council Meeting (before the Council Meeting’s 6:30PM start time on the Sign In Sheet on the
Podium), to address Council on matters pertaining to County Services and Operations. Presentations
will be limited to three (3) minutes per person and total public input will be limited to 30 minutes.

Chairman Sauls noted that several people were present to discuss the Gillisonville Project but it was not
on the agenda tonight. He noted however that they were welcome to speak on this item. The floor was
opened for public comments.

Freddie Brantley spoke regarding his concerns of the Gillisonville Project, large trucks and traffic it would
create. This, he noted would destroy the community and they did not want that.

Don Newton spoke regarding his concerns of the Gillisonville Community Project. He had a statement
that he read noting that the community disagrees with item 1 of the proposed ordinance that designates
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parcel “A” Tax Map # 050-00-04-011 for Resource Extraction. He noted that his designation is not
consistent with the Jasper County Comprehensive Plan. We request a workshop be scheduled and then
meet with Mr. Farmer,

Steven Schmidt spoke regarding the Airport, State Law, and County Ordinances.

Ponsetta Horton declined to speak.

Rosemary Washington discussed water problems that she is having on her property. Chairman Sauls
asked that she give that information to the Administrator for review.

Michelle Gaston noted that she was the Jasper County Council Representative to the Beaufort Jasper
Housing Trust Board. Established to address the affordable housing challenges in the 8 jurisdictional area.
She discussed what had been happening over the prior 90 days and what they had been doing. She
discussed proposed legislation at the state level. For additional information on this item and further
discussion go to https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmlogX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA. Chairman Sauls
thanked her for her service to that Board.

Resolutions: None
Administrator’s Report:

Mr. Fulghum noted that his report was in the packet, and he was available to answer any questions.

He noted that he had to topics to discuss one being the Capital Projects Update which he reviewed with
Council. He mentioned the Coosawhatchie Fire Station and Coosawhatchie Community Center as
potential projects which would be discussed during the retreat. He noted that Jasper County Neighbors
United having a new event which will be an annual event and they are asking for your consideration of
sponsorship. Mr. Ted Moyd stepped forward and discussed the event the County’s opportunity for

the different levels of financial sponsorship.

Motion to have Council consider approving the $3500.00 sponsorship: Chairman Sauls
Second: Councilman Adkins

Vote: Unanimous

The motion passed.

CONSENT AGENDA

Kimberly Burgess — Consideration of appointments to the Accommodations Tax Advisory Commiittee.

Kimberly Burgess — Consideration of Counci! approval of the Contract with Woods Dendy for the Pratt
Memorial Library.

Wanda Simmons — Consideration of approval to amend the Official Adopted Jasper County Meeting
Yearly Schedule start time to 5:30PM Executive Session and 6:30PM Regular Session.
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Motion to approve the Consent Agenda Items: Councilman Kemp
Second: Councilman Adkins

Vote: Unanimous

The motion passed.

Old Business: None

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

Council Members Comments:

Councilman Kemp said he had a meeting at a church with the Sheriff there and Hardeeville Police with
an excellent turnout. Attended a meeting at the Lovely Hill Baptist Church.

Councilman Adkins thanked God for another night.

Councilman Garbade discussed garbage cleanup and the nuisance ordinance. He noted that the county
needed to be cleaned up. He said Mr. Murphy was stretched out doing all he can do.

Vice Chairwoman Clark no comments.

Chairman Sauls spoke at the State of the County Address with both Mayors. He noted it was a great
turnout. He mentioned he had been to the Quarterly SouthernCarolina Alliance Meeting. He then offered
up a moment of silence for Reverend Gregory and his family’s loss. He reminded everyone of upcoming
meetings and workshops.

Possible Return to Executive Session to Continue Discussion on Matters Regarding Agenda
Item ll. There was no reason to return to executive session for this meeting. For additiona) information on
Items on this meeting go to https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmlogX05cKAsHm_ggXCJIA .

Adjournment:

Motion to adjourn: Vice Chairwoman Clark
Second: Councilman Kemp

Vote: Unanimous

The motion passed and the meeting adjourned.

Respectfully submitted:

L. Martin Sauls IV
Chairman

Wanda H. Simmons
Clerk to Council
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